
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
REGULAR MEETING 

Thursday, January 23, 2020 8:30 a.m. 
Lopez Family Resource Center 

 
TRAVEL         
   
Via Ferry: To: 

 
       

 Leave FH 
Orcas 

5:55 am 
7:00 am 

 Arrive Lopez 6:40 am 
7:45 am 

 

  Shaw 7:15 am 
 

     

         
  

Return: 
 

       

 Leave Lopez 3:35 pm  Arrive Shaw 3:55 pm  
                        Orcas 

FH 
4:15 pm 
4:55 pm 
 

 

Sequence of Events 

- OPALCO Board meeting  



Orcas Power & Light Cooperative 
Board of Directors 

Regular Board Meeting 
Lopez Family Resource Center 

January 23, 2020   8:30 A.M.* 
*Time is approximate; meetings are scheduled around the ferry schedule; if all Board members are present, the 
meeting may begin earlier or later than advertised. 
 
WELCOME GUESTS/MEMBERS 
Member attending the board meeting acknowledge that they may be recorded, and the recording posted to 
OPALCO’s website. 

• Member Comment Period 
o Members are expected to conduct themselves with civility and decorum, consistent with 

Member Service Policy 17. If you would like answers to specific questions, please fill out Q&A 
card for post-meeting follow-up. 

 
ACTION ITEMS 

• Consent Agenda  
• General Manager Review 
• Resolution 2-2019: Rescind 

 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 

• 2019 Year in Review 
• Low Income Program Review 

 
REPORTS 

• General Manager 
• Rock Island Snapshot  

 
APPENDICES 

• Member Correspondence: Resolution 2-2019 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Legal, Personnel, and Competitive 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

2 of 73



MEMORANDUM  
 
January 17, 2020 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Foster Hildreth 
 
RE:  Consent Agenda 
 
 
All matters listed with the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion 
of the Board with no separate discussion.  If separate discussion is desired, that item may be removed 
from the Consent Agenda and placed as an Action Item by request of a Board member. The 
minutes will reflect the approved consent agenda. 
 
The Consent Agenda includes: 

• Minutes of the previous meeting – attached.   
• Approval of New Members – attached {as required by Bylaws Article I Section 2 (d)} 

 
NEW MEMBERS – December 2019 

 
District 1 (San Juan, Pearl, Henry, Brown, 
Spieden) 
1. 522 Vista Way LLC 
2. Abdel-Raheem, Salma & Towers, 
Javin 
3. Barber, Leona & Neely, Robert 
4. Bryant, Tess 
5. Friday Harbor Film Festival 
6. Goddard, Bradley 
7. Guenther, Rebecca 
8. Hafner, Carolyn 
9. Heckele, Kati 
10. Kettler, Debra & Frankel, Richard 
11. McArthur, Joann & Joe 
12. Miller, Tanner 
13. Pollnow, Eleanor M & Charles F 
14. Pullen, Suzanne 
15. Smith, Margaret 
16. Young, Laura 

District 2 (Orcas, Armitage, Blakely, Obstruction, 
Big Double, Little Double, Fawn) 
17. Blanc, Enid 

18. Brandt, Eric 
19. Brening, Stephanie & Jacob 
20. Hatch, Jamie 
21. Hillyard, Jonathan 
22. Olson, Isaac 
23. Schermerhorn, Isabella 
24. Weisen, Edward 
25. Whitman, Daria 
26. Wood, Matthew J & Thompson, 
Eleanor 

District 3 (Lopez, Center, Decatur, Center, 
Charles) 
27. Bliss, Jill 
28. Henninger, Christopher 
29. Hughes, Peter 
30. Kretschmer, Marc & Charleen 
31. Thoreen, Harold & Haggard, 
Suzanne 
32. Zavon, Barbara & Ward, Mark 

District 4 (Shaw, Crane, Canoe, Bell) 
None 

3 of 73



 
• Capital Credit payments to estates of deceased members and/or organizations no longer in 

business as shown below: 
 

 
 

• RUS 219s Inventory of Work Orders of projects completed from the Construction Work Plan 
totaling $205,771.70. These forms are submitted to RUS for approval of loan funds. 
 

 Inventory 201911 - $176,044.23 for projects associated with replacement of 
underground lines, aging poles, and transclosures. 

 Inventory AS1911 - $29,727.47 for projects associated with system improvements. 
 

 
 
Staff requests a motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 
 
 
 
 
 

Customer # Amount
26520 166.61           
71469 165.76           
63001 3,372.65        
50843 118.19           
35500 327.48           
Total 4,150.69$      

January

4 of 73



Orcas Power & Light Cooperative 
Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting 

Thursday, December 19, 2019 
 
President Vince Dauciunas called the meeting to order at 8:35 a.m. at the OPALCO Friday Harbor conference room.  
Board members present were Rick Christmas, Brian Silverstein, Jeff Struthers, Peter Garlock and Jerry Whitfield. 
Staff present were General Manager Foster Hildreth; Manager of Engineering and Operations Russell Guerry; 
Manager of Finance and Member Services Nancy Loomis; Communications Specialist Krista Bouchey; and 
Executive Assistant Kelly Koral (serving as recording secretary). Consultant Jay Kimball, Legal Counsel Joel Paisner 
were also in attendance. 
 
MEMBERS AND GUESTS 
The following members arrived at the beginning of the Board meeting (~8;30am) to discuss a potential 
collaboration with Lopez School to obtain and implement a grant to electrify school buses: 
Bruce Nyden  Kurt Fuller 
Chom Greacen  Brad Buchanan 
 
The following members arrived at ~12:00pm to discuss Resolution 2-2019 related to the Lower Snake River Dams:  
Valerie Yates   Caroline Grauman   Norris Palmer 
Kim Secunda   Peter Giampietro   Sandie Friel 
Karin Roemers-Kleven  John Calogero    Debra Giles 
Sheila Goquin   Heather Fold    Sean O’Leary (NWEC) 
Bob Friel   Winnie Adams    Chom Greacen 
Bruce Nyden   Kurt Fuller    Brad Buchanan 
 
2019 YOUTH RALLY PRESENTATION – Nourdine Jensen Scholarship 
 
Scholarship receipients Presley Clark and Annemarie Ryan, both students at Friday Harbor High School, San Juan 
Island, were in attendance and presented a slide show along with their narrative of their trip to Idaho for the ICUA 
Youth Rally and their experiences there. Both were very appreciative of OPALCO for providing the opportunity 
and are encouraging their friends and siblings to apply for the scholarship in the future. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

• Motion was made and seconded to approve the Consent Agenda, including November 21, 2019 minutes, 
new members as listed with the Board materials and capital credit payments totaling $6,179.72.  Motion 
carried by voice vote.

 
OPALCO 2020 TARIFFS 
Second read of the 2020 Tariffs.  It was requested going forward that a summary be prepared.  It was agreed a 
Dashboard would be created at added to our website.   

• Motion was made and seconded to approve the 2020 Tariffs as presented.  Motion carried by voice 
vote. 

 
ELECTRIC SCHOOL BUS CHARGING STATIONS 
Staff has received two requests from members on both Lopez and Orcas to support grant funding for electric 
school buses in their districts.  In keeping with OPALCO’s vision of expanding vehicle electrification, staff requested 
a motion to assist the districts in this endeavor. 

• Motion was made to assist school bus electrification throughout the County using the concepts 
articulated by staff.  Motion was seconded and approved by voice vote. 
 

Break 9:40 – 9:52 
 
REPORTS 

General Manager 
Staff reviewed the General Manager’s Report and Rock Island Snapshot 
 
Break 10:55 – 11:50 
 
THE CHALLENGES BETWEEN DAM REMOVAL AND RELIABLE, SUSTAINABLE AND COST EFFECTIVE POWER 

 A discussion was held regarding OPALCO’s passing of Resolution 2-2019.  Eighteen co-op members participated 
in an emotionally charged discussion regarding the lower Snake River dams and ocean health.  Members also 
wrote letters to the Board asking them to reconsider the resolution. The Board listened as members shared their 

5 of 73



    

opinions and concerns about ocean health, species survival and the role of the co-op in representing their 
positions. The Board agreed to revisit Resolution 2-2019 with greater collaboration from the membership.  
 
Hearfelt comments and concerns were voiced by those in attendance including: 
 

- Co-op principles and democratic control 
- WRECA 
- Member information – policies and decisions 
- Premature decision with the resolution 
- Value of life 
- Source data – irrigation, salmon migrating north, power shortages 
- Power from the dams can be replaced affordably 
- NWEC study.  New information/misinterpretation 
- Is dam energy needed? 
- Disappointed with the resolution 
- Decisions on environmental crisis 
- Rescind the resolution 
- Taskforce/legislation 
- Breach the dams 
- Learn 
- Educate youth on complicated issues 
- OPALCO – leader on climate change 
- Protect salmon and orcas 
- Powering the islands – sustainability 
- Scrutiny of BPA  
- Fraser River salmon in decline 
- Formally reconsider with public process 
- How do we replace dam energy? 

 
• Motion was made for the Board Chair and General Manager to arrange for a meeting of the Board 

to revisit the resolution to determine what actions are to be taken and to include the greatest 
member participation.  Motion seconded and approved by voice vote. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
Meeting adjourned at 1:45 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________                     _________________________________ 
        Vince Dauciunas, President                                  Brian Silverstein, Secretary-Treasurer 
 
 
 

6 of 73



Period:  NOV 2019
RUS Form 219 Inventory Of Work Orders10:48:05 am01/02/2020 Page: 3

System Designation:  WA O9

Revision: 103893Orcas Power & Light Cooperative

Year Construction
(1)

Retirement
(2)

Bdgt
(3)

Cost Of
Construction:
New Constr

Or
Replacements

(4)

Cost Of
Removal:

New Constr
Or

Replacements
(5)

New
Construction

Or
Replacements

(6)

Retirements
Without

Replacements

(7)

Contrib
In Aid Of
Constr and
Previous
Advances

(8)

Loan Funds
Subject

To Advance
By RUS

(9)
Project

Inventory: 201911 Gross Funds Required Deductions
Salvage Relating To

Loan Work Order

601 2018 3114 3114 1 6,087.00 531.81 902.73 0.00 0.00 5,683.14
AFUDC:  32.94

601 2018 3278 3278 1 16,029.94 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 15,946.52
AFUDC:  83.42

22,116.94 531.81 902.73 0.00 0.00 21,629.66

606 2018 2872 2872 1 53,193.70 315.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 51,697.68
AFUDC:  1,811.02

53,193.70 315.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 51,697.68

608 - 1 2018 2629 2629 1 117,229.78 3,704.30 0.00 0.00 12,996.29 102,716.89
AFUDC:  5,220.90

117,229.78 3,704.30 0.00 0.00 12,996.29 102,716.89

$ 192,540.42 $ 4,551.11 $ 902.73 $ 0.00 $ 12,996.29 $ 176,044.23Grand Totals:

/pro/rpttemplate/acct/2.46.1/wo/WO_CLOSING_219.xml.rpt tneal55009

7 of 73



Period:  NOV 2019
RUS Form 219 Inventory Of Work Orders10:48:05 am01/02/2020 Page: 7

System Designation:  WA O9

Revision: 103893Orcas Power & Light Cooperative

BORROWER CERTIFICATION

WE CERTIFY THAT THE COSTS OF CONSTRUCTION SHOWN ARE THE ACTUAL COSTS AND ARE REFLECTED IN
THE GENERAL ACCOUNTING RECORDS. WE FURTHER CERTIFY THAT FUNDS REPRESENTED BY ADVANCES
REQUESTED HAVE BEEN EXPENDED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PURPOSES ON THE LOAN, THE PROVISIONS OF
THE LOAN CONTRACT AND MORTGAGE, RUS BULLETINS, AND THE CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS RELATIVE
TO THE ADVANCE OF FUNDS FOR WORK ORDER PURPOSES. WE CERTIFY THAT NO FUNDS ARE BEING
REQUESTED FOR REIMBURSEMENT OF CONSTRUCTION WORK IN A CBRA AREA.

LICENSE NUMBER

ENGINEERING CERTIFICATION

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT SUFFICIENT INSPECTION HAS BEEN MADE OF THE CONSTRUCTION REPORTED BY THIS
INVENTORY TO GIVE ME REASONABLE ASSURANCE THAT THE CONSTRUCTION COMPLIES WITH APPLICABLE
SPECIFICATIONS AND STANDARDS AND MEETS APPROPRIATE CODE REQUIREMENTS AS TO STRENGTH AND
SAFETY. THIS CERTIFICATION IS IN ACCORDANCE WITH ACCEPTABLE ENGINEERING PRACTICE.

SIGNATURE (MANAGER)

SIGNATURE (BOARD APPROVAL)

INSPECTION PERFORMED BY FIRM

DATE SIGNATURE OF LICENSED ENGINEER

DATE

DATE

Inventory : 201911

Project Amount
Budget
Loan

1 601 21,629.66
1 606 51,697.68
1 608 - 1 102,716.89

176,044.23Total:

/pro/rpttemplate/acct/2.46.1/wo/WO_CLOSING_219.xml.rpt tneal55009

8 of 73



Period:  NOV 2019
RUS Form 219 Inventory Of Work Orders10:48:05 am01/02/2020 Page: 4

System Designation:  WA O9

Revision: 103893Orcas Power & Light Cooperative

Year Construction
(1)

Retirement
(2)

Bdgt
(3)

Cost Of
Construction:
New Constr

Or
Replacements

(4)

Cost Of
Removal:

New Constr
Or

Replacements
(5)

New
Construction

Or
Replacements

(6)

Retirements
Without

Replacements

(7)

Contrib
In Aid Of
Constr and
Previous
Advances

(8)

Loan Funds
Subject

To Advance
By RUS

(9)
Project

Inventory: AS1911 Gross Funds Required Deductions
Salvage Relating To

Loan Work Order

1600 2018 2702 1 30,564.29 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 29,727.47
AFUDC:  836.82

30,564.29 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 29,727.47

$ 30,564.29 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 29,727.47Grand Totals:

Minor Construction Work Orders

Work Order:  2702 - EXTEND 1200' SINGLE PHASE POWER DOWN PINE STREET

/pro/rpttemplate/acct/2.46.1/wo/WO_CLOSING_219.xml.rpt tneal55009

9 of 73



Period:  NOV 2019
RUS Form 219 Inventory Of Work Orders10:48:05 am01/02/2020 Page: 8

System Designation:  WA O9

Revision: 103893Orcas Power & Light Cooperative

ENVIRONMENTAL CERTIFICATION

1 WE CERTIFY THAT CONSTRUCTION REPORTED ON THE LISTED WORK ORDERS (EXCEPT
CERTIFICATION "2" BELOW), IS A CATEGORICAL EXCLUSION OF A TYPE DESCRIBED IN 7 CFR 1970
WHICH NORMALLY DOES NOT REQUIRE PREPARATION OF A BORROWER'S ENVIRONMENTAL
REPORT.

2 WE CERTIFY THAT CONSTRUCTION REPORTED ON WORK ORDERS_____________________________ ,
IS A CATEGORICAL EXCLUSION OF A TYPE THAT NORMALLY REQUIRES A BORROWER'S
ENVIRONMENTAL REPORT WHICH IS ATTACHED.

DATESIGNATURE (MANAGER)

BORROWER CERTIFICATION

WE CERTIFY THAT THE COSTS OF CONSTRUCTION SHOWN ARE THE ACTUAL COSTS AND ARE REFLECTED IN
THE GENERAL ACCOUNTING RECORDS. WE FURTHER CERTIFY THAT FUNDS REPRESENTED BY ADVANCES
REQUESTED HAVE BEEN EXPENDED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PURPOSES ON THE LOAN, THE PROVISIONS OF
THE LOAN CONTRACT AND MORTGAGE, RUS BULLETINS, AND THE CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS RELATIVE
TO THE ADVANCE OF FUNDS FOR WORK ORDER PURPOSES. WE CERTIFY THAT NO FUNDS ARE BEING
REQUESTED FOR REIMBURSEMENT OF CONSTRUCTION WORK IN A CBRA AREA.

DATE

DATESIGNATURE (BOARD APPROVAL)

SIGNATURE (MANAGER)

ENGINEERING CERTIFICATION

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT SUFFICIENT INSPECTION HAS BEEN MADE OF THE CONSTRUCTION REPORTED BY THIS
INVENTORY TO GIVE ME REASONABLE ASSURANCE THAT THE CONSTRUCTION COMPLIES WITH APPLICABLE
SPECIFICATIONS AND STANDARDS AND MEETS APPROPRIATE CODE REQUIREMENTS AS TO STRENGTH AND
SAFETY. THIS CERTIFICATION IS IN ACCORDANCE WITH ACCEPTABLE ENGINEERING PRACTICE.

FIRMINSPECTION PERFORMED BY

SIGNATURE OF LICENSED ENGINEERDATELICENSE NUMBER

Inventory : AS1911

Project Amount
Budget
Loan

1 1600 29,727.47
29,727.47Total:

/pro/rpttemplate/acct/2.46.1/wo/WO_CLOSING_219.xml.rpt tneal55009

10 of 73



 MEMORANDUM 
 
January 17, 2019 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Vince Dauciunas 
 
RE:  GM Annual Review 
 
 
At the Board President’s request, the Board will discuss the performance review of the General 
Manager in Executive Session.  

11 of 73



MEMORANDUM 
 
January 17, 2020 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Foster Hildreth 
 
RE:  Resolution 2-2019: Rescind 
 
 
Staff recommends that the Board rescind Resolution 2-2019 (attached) at the January meeting. 
As a co-op, it is our highest purpose to serve our members and work collaboratively toward a 
healthy future. We’ve heard from our members that they are concerned about the issues 
surrounding ocean health, the fate of Lower Snake River Dams and the need to respond to global 
warming—and we are listening.  
 
As summarized in the “Lower Snake River Dams Stakeholder Engagement Report” (12/20/2019), 
a wide variety of people with varying interests want to have more informed and respectful 
conversations.  They (and we) are hopeful about the significant benefits a collaborative dialogue 
could offer to a process so far stuck on its challenging issues.  
 
In response to member feedback, OPALCO held two public meetings (Nov 20 and Dec 19) to 
discuss the intentions and science behind the Board’s resolution in support of the Columbia River 
Federal Power System. Staff met with members and local organization, held a technical 
discussion with Northwest Energy Coalition (NWEC) to compare data and findings on the costs 
of replacing the energy and capacity of the LSRDs, and received a number of letters from 
members taking both pro- and con- positions. These letters are (or have been) included in board 
materials.  
 
For more than 82 years, OPALCO has been dedicated to providing safe, reliable, clean, 
affordable, and sustainable energy to our members.  All Washington utilities, including OPALCO, 
are facing major challenges to meet the requirements of the Clean Energy Transformation Act 
(CETA).  This leads to new pressures on the supply of power in the region including capacity 
(ability to meet peak needs) and cost (carbon fees and market pricing).  
 
OPALCO must ensure an adequate supply of clean electricity to meet the needs of our 
membership. Even as the co-op moves toward its ambitious goal of providing up to 50% of our 
power needs from local renewable sources (by 2040), it will still depend on the mainland for at 
least half of its power supply. Especially, a reliable and cost-effective source of firm power to 
support our intermittent renewable sources when the sun doesn’t shine and wind doesn’t blow–
which is a good percentage of the time.  
 
As we build toward local resilience with renewable energy sources, energy efficiency, switching 
away from fossil fuels and a greater commitment to conservation, we will be acting in support of 
our sensitive and fragile island environs and mitigating the consequences of climate change – 
particularly the impact from rising water temperatures on our marine ecosystem. In doing the right 
thing for our energy future, we will also be doing our part to build healthy, sustainable island 
communities. 
 

12 of 73



In order to develop enough local distributed power to meet up to 50% of our energy needs by 
2040, we must begin now to find suitable land and start the challenging tasks of siting, permitting 
and funding these projects.  This is a heavy lift and will require the partnership of local and state 
government, the collaboration of local and regional organizations and the cooperation – and 
enthusiasm – of our co-op owner-members.  
 
OPALCO is optimistic about the potential for collaboration in our small corner of the state and the 
significant benefits our actions will bring – directly to the health of our environment and also as a 
model for other utilities in the region. 
 
OPALCO’s goal is to listen to our members about their positions and jointly understand the 
resource inadequacy in the Pacific Northwest region. OPALCO needs to keep power flowing for 
our members 24/7 as our energy industry addresses decarbonization (coal plant closures, 
electrification of transportation/heating and carbon reduction legislation). Our chief concern is how 
to provide firm, reliable power to 20 remote islands in San Juan County, while increasing our 
share of intermittent renewable energy resources.  OPALCO and our members need to 
understand our regional resource deficiency dilemma and as we collaborate on finding acceptable 
energy resources as we strive for a clean renewable energy future.  
 
Staff recommends that the Board make a motion to rescind Resolution 2-2019. 
 

13 of 73



RECOMMENDED 

TO R
ESCIN

D

14 of 73



RECOMMENDED 

TO R
ESCIN

D

15 of 73



MEMORANDUM 
 
January 17, 2020 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Foster Hildreth 
 
RE:  Year in Review (2019) 
 
 
Our OPALCO team is very proud of many major accomplishments achieved during 2019. 
Attached is a list of some of the successes that were experienced throughout the year. Although 
the summary is organized by department, most efforts spanned over multiple staff throughout the 
Company, which truly demonstrates the “cooperative” spirit of the OPALCO team. 
 

16 of 73



  

2019 Year in Review Report 
 
OPALCO Team Accomplishments 
 
Safety: 

• Exceeded 200,000 hours worked without a loss time accident. 
• Actively monitor safety improvement plans as outlined in our RESAP program (Rural 

Electric Safety Achievement Program). 
• Committed to NRECA’s Zero Contacts initiative. 
• Held monthly comprehensive safety meetings to sustain a culture of safety. 

 
Engineering, Operations & Information Technology: 

• Average service availability rate of 99.9% for the year. 
• Completed construction and energized Blakely Substation. 
• Completed Olga Substation upgrades. 
• Completed operational ability to loop the Decatur Feed to the Lopez Feed 
• Replaced 62,400 feet of aging and failing underground cable (mixture of three phase and 

single phase). 
• 90% complete on SCADA network security segregation. 
• Transitioned to new server cluster with more robust disaster recovery scheme. 
• Transitioned to IT and network support with Rock Island. 
• Replaced 34 transmission poles. 
• ROW Trimming: Greater than 2100 trees trimmed, 160 danger tree removals, 19 miles of 

tree trimming, 3.5 miles of brush trimming. 
• Replaced 44 aging and deteriorated poles. 

 
Finance & Accounting: 

• Unqualified opinion of Financial Audit. No audit comments in the ‘communication of 
internal control related matters’ letter to management and the Board. 

• Launched Switch-It-Up on-bill financing program, financed >70 energy efficiency projects 
for >$700K.  

• Applied for and received RUS approval for an additional $15 million with 0% interest RUS 
RESP funds to finance energy efficiency projects throughout the County through 
OPALCO’s Switch-It-Up Program. 

• Applied for, received approval and contracted with USDA Rural Development for a $100K 
Energy Audit grant to provide commercial energy audits for OPALCO member 
businesses.  

• Received award letter for a $2.4 million Clean Energy Fund III grant for a micro grid 
project on Lopez. 

• Collaborated on an NRECA-led grant application & received approval for a $1 million-
dollar collaborative grant through the US Department of Energy Solar Energy 
Technologies Office (DOE SETO) to support NRECA’s Energy Access for All initiative: 
‘Cooperatives Achieving Rural Equity in Solar (CARES)’ project. NRECA in process of 
finalizing grant contract with DOE. OPALCO is one of six cooperatives nationwide to 
participate in the three-year collaborative project seeking to increase solar affordability in 
rural communities. 

17 of 73



  

• Implemented tariff ECA (energy charge adjustment) to balance monthly fluctuations in 
power cost compared to budget, returning a credit or adding a marginal charge monthly. 

• Continued capital credit smoothing methodology for the third year, retiring $1.3M in 
capital credits back to the membership in 2019. 

 
Management and Human Resources: 

• Hired three Apprentice Lineman, two Journeyman Lineman, and a System Engineer. 
• Promoted an Apprentice Lineman to a Journeyman Lineman. 
• Contracted and permitted the Eastsound remodel. Made best use of member resources 

by temporarily relocating staff in 1930’s annex. 
 
Energy Savings: Rebates, Electric Vehicles & Renewables 

• Rebate dollars awarded to members through December: $225,837. 
• Energy saved by members through BPA/PNGC rebates: 738,124 kilowatt hours. 
• Total interconnected members generating renewable power: 364 with 56 new in 2019. 
• 2,281 MWh of member solar/wind production incentivized by WA State. 
• Supported 46 members in beneficial electrification measures, totaling $50,289. 
• Incentivized the installation of 20 EV charging stations for homes and businesses. 
• Decatur Community Solar project: 

1. 276 members participated. 
2. was certified under new WA State incentive program. 
3. produced 507 MWh – enough to power 500+ typical SJ County homes for a 

month, or 42 homes for a year. 
4. distributed $51.2k through production credits on participants’ bills ($64k since 

energization), including an additional $5,143 to the PAL and Energy Assist 
programs. 

5. Removed additional trees from SE corner of the parcel resulting in average 19% 
higher winter production. 

• In partnership with the San Juan Islands Conservation District, 
1. hosted 10 Energy Roundtable meetings, 
2. hosted three Green Home Tours (coupled with the Transition Lopez/Fossil Free by 

’33 event) 
3. Promoted EV resulting in 22% adoption rate over 2018 

• Collaborated with Sustainable Connections in Bellingham for Energize San Juans 
campaign marketing small commercial energy audits and Solarize for businesses. 

Member Services 
• Six Member Services Representatives handled more than 14,771 inbound calls from 

members. 
• Billed members ~$30.88M for energy usage of ~209.9M kWh. 
• Coordinated Project PAL transition from a volunteer member committee to the local 

family/community resource centers to further facilitate access to assistance programs for 
low-income households. In 2019, 255 members were awarded more than $53k in 
assistance. 

• Boosted Energy Assist participation with 460 households receiving monthly bill credits 
totaling ~$135.6k. 

• More than 60% of members are now on autopay. 
• More than 63% of members use (or have access to) SmartHub. 
• 46% of members are paperless. 

18 of 73



  

• Implemented scheduled payments in SmartHub for members to pay at their convenience 
without having to contact Member Services multiple times. 

• Maintained service while transitioning half the team to temporary office. 
 
Communications 

• Based on member satisfaction survey results and website analytics, updated Energy 
Savings website (launch in Q1-2020), especially rebate info and forms.  

• 2019 was the year of the rebate, and with the additional outreach participation jumped 
from 171 in 2018 to 257 in 2019 – including fuel-switching rebates. 

• Successful launch of Switch it Up – utilized new outreach strategies such as pop-ups and 
FB live. 

• Internal communications: Instituted monthly talking points, construction updates. 
• Updated outage and safety center including a new video: 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=PPqYFzVD1FM&feature=youtu.be 
• Updated look and functionality of This Electric Life blog: 

https://energysavings.opalco.com/electric-life-blog/ 
• Homepage refresh: cleaner look, new icons and navigation improvements: 

www.opalco.com 
• Launched “Thank a Lineworker” campaign and webpage: 

http://www.opalco.com/lineworkers 
• Krista Bouchey earned her Certified Cooperative Communicator certification. 
• Collaborated with Engineering firm HDR to create a video about our ESS project on 

Decatur: https://hdr.wistia.com/medias/4pv51xha65 
• Provided outreach and support for Energize/Solarize workshops: 

https://www.opalco.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/11/OPALCO-November-2019-Board-
Materials.pdf (page 101) 

• Launched a new Quick Facts library online: https://www.opalco.com/newsroom/quick-
facts/ 

• Represented OPALCO at Transition Lopez: Fossil Free by ‘33 event. 
• Coordinated OPALCO’s first Earthquake Preparedness Drill. 
• Re-tooled field day, based on staff survey results. Hosted quarterly Staff Field Day 

events, offering safety training, cross-competency demonstrations, team building and 
staff appreciation. 

• Designed and printed the annual report in house and saved thousands of dollars. 
• Coordinated legislative visits in Olympia and with Governor Jay Inslee. 
• Was recognized by the Northwest Public Power Association’s Excellence in 

Communication Awards for our original Switch it Up! song.   
• Cultivated five Nourdine Jensen Cooperative Youth Scholars, attended the ICUA Youth 

Rally at the College of Idaho, and mentored the youth to make a presentation to the 
Board. 

• Promoted safety and the Switch it Up campaign with a booth at the San Juan County Fair 
and reached thousands of fair goers with messages of safety, efficiency and cooperation. 

• Hosted moderated Candidate Forums (spring) and Open House ‘listening’ meetings (fall). 
• Staff met with 243 members through speaking engagements at civic, community, HOA 

and service groups, as well as visiting all three senior centers. 

 
 

19 of 73

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=PPqYFzVD1FM&feature=youtu.be
https://energysavings.opalco.com/electric-life-blog/
http://www.opalco.com/lineworkers
https://hdr.wistia.com/medias/4pv51xha65
https://www.opalco.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/11/OPALCO-November-2019-Board-Materials.pdf
https://www.opalco.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/11/OPALCO-November-2019-Board-Materials.pdf
https://www.opalco.com/newsroom/quick-facts/
https://www.opalco.com/newsroom/quick-facts/


  

Rock Island Team Accomplishments 
 
Safety: 

• Zero loss time accidents in 2019 and only one eight (8) hour loss time accident since 
established in 2015.  

• Hold monthly comprehensive safety meetings to sustain a culture of safety. 
 
Tech Support: 

• We currently deliver a 99.99% reliability rate to our fiber and wireless customers. 
• Less than 20% of our customer base experienced an outage caused by an in-county 

event. 
• Staff handled over 28,000 inbound calls and closed more than 31,000 support cases. 

 
Sales and Onboarding: 

• Connected more than 600 homes and businesses to our fiber network, well ahead of plan 
by more than 60. 

• Signed up 815 wireless customers despite delays in Phase 2 LTE equipment. 
• Rebounded from a $13k cell phone bonus metric change by T-Mobile to back on plan via 

other bonus avenues and efforts to reach over $330k in revenue for the year, ahead of 
the 2019 plan. 

• Doubled our Business Service revenue in 2019. 
• Beat our combined subscription goal for fiber and wireless. 
• Captured 43% and growing of the total internet subscriber market in the county. 
• Reduced DSL subscriptions to under 350. 
• Developed new eligibility data that grew our contactable marketing base by 30%. 
• Maintained an average fiber onboarding rate $5 higher per connection than our planned 

ARPU. 

Management and Human Resources: 
• Successfully transitioned Network Operations Senior staff to SVP roles in conjunction 

with the addition of a new Director of Business Services. 
• Maintained continuity of management and more closely aligned cultural habits across 

staff at the SVP level, meeting the expense budget on plan. 
• Completed three major software developments supporting our CRM and fiber onboarding 

processes. 
• Defined a true HR and Operations management program, allowing staff ease of access 

to resources within the company. 
 
Plant 

• Added redundancy to the nearly 530 miles of fiber in our county network. 
• Completed 29 on-site generator installations on critical network infrastructure. 
• Added one new LTE site and upgraded three existing tower-bottom sites to new L6 

tower-top sites to increase our service offering. 
• Connected 18 Multi-Dwelling Unit buildings to fiber in a three-month period, providing Gig 

service options to over 250 low income residents. 
• Continue to make progress at off-island redundancy circuits, forging relationships with 

multiple partners to solve the single point of failure problem. 

20 of 73



  

• Unearthed $2 Million dollars in T-Mobile inventory during a company change freeze due 
to the merger. 

• Assisted County staff in moving forward on a county-wide communications project for first 
responders, leveraging the foundation of our fiber network. 

• Service 1,912 fiber connections and 3054 wireless customers. 
 

21 of 73



MEMORANDUM 
 
January 17, 2020 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Foster Hildreth 
 
RE:  OPALCO Member Assistance Program Update 
 
 
Our OPALCO team is very proud of the progress achieved during 2019 in outreach to households 
in need and for the transition to island family resource centers for the direct delivery and 
coordination of Project PAL.  
 
During December 2019, 360 members received $~12.4k from the Energy Assist Program (EAP), 
compared to 309 members receiving $~9.3k in December 2019. There were 50 members 
awarded $9,404 in assistance through the PAL program by the local family and community 
resource centers. In December 2018, the volunteer PAL Council awarded $6,050 to 32 members. 
 
This past fall, staff began working with our island community and family resource centers to 
transition the PAL application administration these local, island-centric organizations who already 
work with our members at risk. The resource centers administer many of other low-income 
programs (LIHEAP, and County programs); working together streamlines the process and gives 
our members one-stop shopping for the help they need – removing a large barrier to entry. In the 
first three months of the new system, Member Services Representatives have significantly 
reduced the amount of time they spend on PAL logistics and members get approved and their 
accounts credited much faster than when they had to wait for the volunteer PAL Committee to 
meet on a monthly basis. 
 
Below is a historical count of PAL awards month-to-month. It shows that the number of accounts 
qualified at the beginning of the season (November-December) is ~20% higher than the previous 
two seasons, and the award amount is about 24% higher than last year during the same 
timeframe. This demonstrates that higher awards are being awarded faster, and also note that 
the notices issued and disconnects during November and December 2019 are markedly lower, 
no doubt due to more assistance and member engagement.  
(https://www.opalco.com/dashboards/) 
 

22 of 73

https://www.opalco.com/dashboards/


 
 
 
Members participating in the EAP can also get a matching discount on their Rock Island bill. Rock 
Island currently has 46 customers taking advantage of the EAP program at a monthly cost of 
~$1.5k or ~$17.2k annually in 2019.  When comparing the EAP discount offered to customers 
against their overall invoice total for services from Rock Island, the EAP discounts range between 
24 to 64% with an average of 39% off of the standing pricing for services. 
 
OPALCO’s energy assistance programs are being held up as a model for the state and region. 
Staff have been working with the Dept of Commerce in their rule making process for the new 
Comprehensive Energy and Transportation Act (CETA), particularly how utilities can provide 
support to low-income households. Commerce is very interested in the scope, maturity and 
technical execution (billing) of our programs, including the benefits to members on their Rock 
Island bills for a significant affordability impact. 
 
 
 

23 of 73



 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

January 2020 
 
DASHBOARDS 
Please review the dashboards at https://www.opalco.com/dashboards. Note that all the 
dashboards are within board approved strategic parameters.  
 
Finance 
Budget Variance 
Cash 
Power Cost 
TIER/Margin 
Debt/Equity 
Capital 
WIP 
Expense 
Capital Projects 

Member Services 
Disconnects 
ECA 
PAL 
Energy Assist 
Community Solar 
Service Additions 
Member Generation 
Revenue Dist. – Prior Year 
Revenue Dist. – Current Year 

Outage 
Historical SAIDI - Graph 
Historical SAIDI - Figures 
Outage Stats – Monthly 
Outage Stats – Rolling 12 Mth 
SAIDI by Category 
Outage Summary 
Outage Summary - Monthly

 
ENGINEERING, OPERATIONS, AND INFORMATION TECHNOLOGIES 
WIP 
As of January 16, 2020, there are 343 work orders open totaling $5.97M.  Decatur Energy 
Storage System is 960k of this.  Operations has completed construction on 101 work orders, 
totaling $1.70M.  
 
Winter Storm – 1/12 through 1/17 
Weather systems shifted this past Sunday evening (1/12) with temperatures dropping from 43°F 
to 27°F.  Temperatures bottomed out at 19°F on Tuesday (1/14) with the system load peaking 
at ~67.2 MW.  Our expected billing demand from PNGC/BPA is ~66.3 MW (this is an hourly 
demand). We sustained outages totaling approximately 7 outages with an average service 
availability of 99.67% and average outage duration or ~23 minutes for all members. Many 
members have written in thanking us for our quick response and dedication to fixing any 
problems that occurred. Thanks to our very capable crew and staff who worked to ensure our 
members stayed warm and cozy during this storm. 

   

24 of 73

https://www.opalco.com/dashboards


 
Safety 
John Spain, Safety Coordinator of Columbia REA, conducted excavation and trenching training.  
The total hours worked without a loss time accident: 210,905 hours.  
 
Below you will find the 2018 historical comparative safety performance charts for OPALCO.  
DART (Days away, restricted, or transferred) is the number of OSHA recordable cases resulting 
in days away, restricted duty or transferred work per 100 employees. VAR (Vehicle Accident 
Rate) is the number of vehicular accidents per million miles driven in co-op owned or leased 
vehicles. LWCR (Lost Workday Case Rate) is the number of OSHA recordable cases resulting 
in days away from work per 100 employees. 

 

25 of 73



 

 
Grid Modernization Projects 

• Decatur Battery Energy Storage System (ESS) – WA DOC CEF2 Grid Modernization 
(~$1M Grant) – Staff submitted the design milestone to WA DOC and is awaiting funding. 
Construction walkthrough has been scheduled for the final week of January with an 
updated commissioning in early Q2.   

26 of 73



 
• Lopez Microgrid – WA DOC CEF3 Grid Modernization (Grant $ Amount TBD) – WA 

DOC has awarded the grant funds and staff anticipates completing the contract with WA 
DOC by end of Q4. 

 
FINANCE 
2019 Budget Tracking 
Energy (kWh) purchases, sales were slightly higher than budgeted through December 2019. 
Note, the remaining accounts in the December income statement are in process of being closed 
out and reconciled and as such are not reported below. 
 

 
 

Heating Degree Days (HDD) 
This winter HDD trended towards a neutral weather cycle (in between El Nino and La Niña), 
driven by prevailing winds. February surprised us with extreme cold as the wind and weather 
shifted, coming from the northeast. April through September returned to a warmer El Niño 
pattern, then October surprised us with the highest HDD for an October this century, November 
settled around the 10-year average and December was back to the El Niño average. 
 

  
*10-year max, min, avg is 2009-2018 

December 2019 YTD
Budget Actual Variance

Gross Revenue 30,283$          31,676$           1,393$              

ECA Surcharge / (Credit) -                 (341)                (341)                  

 Revenue 30,283            31,335             1,052                
Expenses

Cost of Power 9,358              9,262               (96)                    

HDD 1,026              1,323               297                   

kWh Purchases 206,000          221,869           15,869              

kWh Sales 192,610          207,180           14,570              

Income Statement Summary
(in thousands)

27 of 73



Weather Forecast  
The current NOAA ‘3-month outlook temperature probability’ for Jan-Feb-Mar 2020 continues to 
show a 33-40% probability of ‘above normal’ temperatures in our region. We continue to monitor 
these predictors on a monthly basis. 
 

 
Source: NOAA National Weather Service 

 
Monthly ECA  
The calculated amount for the December ECA was a bill credit of ($.013645) per kWh which 
returned $308,202 in December, or $13.65 per 1,000 kWh. The YTD ECA through the December 
billing period was a credit to members (and reduction to operating revenue) of $341,185, or 
~$10.00 for a member using 1000 kWh/month. The January 2020 billing period ECA will be a 
bill credit of ($.012794) per kWh.   
 
MEMBER SERVICES 
Energy Assistance 
During December 2019, 360 members received $~12.4k from the Energy Assist program, 
compared to 309 members receiving $~9.3k in December 2019. There were 50 members 
awarded $9,404 in assistance through the PAL program by the local Family and Community 
Resource Centers. In December 2018 the volunteer PAL Council awarded $6,050 to 32 
members. 
 
Switch it Up! 
There are now 123 projects in various stages of participation for a total of ~$975k in play.  
67 projects are complete and billing.  
 
Energy Savings 
In December 2019 there were 17 rebates paid to members totaling ~$10.9k. Staff continued to 
accept and waitlist applications for beneficial electrification incentives (fuel-switching). Per the 
2020 approved budget, EV Charging Stations and fuel-switching ductless heat pump 
installations will resume in January ’20. 

28 of 73



 
Community Solar 
During the December 2019 billing cycle the Decatur Community Solar array produced 9,040 
kWh, and 1 kWh per solar unit was credited to member participants. A total of ~$675k was 
distributed to 276 accounts, including an additional ~$70 for the PAL and Energy Assist 
programs.  
(https://energysavings.opalco.com/energy-savings/renewable-generation/community-
solar/decatur-community-solar-project/) 
 
COMMUNICATIONS 
2020 Election Update 
Nominations for District 1 candidates opened on December 6th. To date, two applications have 
been submitted. Candidate Forums are scheduled as follows March 12th – San Juan Island, 
March 16th – Lopez Island and March 17th – Orcas Island. We plan to Facebook Live the March 
12th event. The Election Guidelines have been updated with a timeline for the process of Member 
Initiated Bylaw Amendments – available online: https://www.opalco.com/resource-
library/#rlfelectionsandgovernanceelections.  
 
2020 Communications Strategy 
The Communications Team maintains an annual plan for outreach and strategic engagement 
with the membership that includes internal communications, website/online presence, reputation 
and brand management, member satisfaction, advertising, public speaking, member meetings, 
annual meeting, elections, legislative affairs and targeted campaigns. The major campaigns this 
year are: 20/20 Vision (telling the story of our vision for future power), Community Solar 2, Logo 
Refresh and a new round of Switch it Up. In April, staff will present the communication strategy 
for our 20/20 vision campaign in Q3-4. 
 
Switch it Up! Survey 
Members who completed a Switch it Up! project in 2019 will be surveyed in late January to get 
feedback for the next round of the program. The online survey will be sent to only those 
participating members. The same survey will be issued quarterly as more members complete 
projects. Results will be compiled in March and again in January 2021. 
 
Nourdine Jensen Cooperative Youth Scholarship Program 
The 2020 program dates have been finalized. The application will open February 1st for San 
Juan County students. The program includes a $1,000 college scholarship and a week at the 
ICUA Youth Rally, a co-op leadership camp.  

 
2020 Logo Refresh 
A request for proposals was issued earlier this month to solicit a design firm to support our logo 
refresh project. See RFP: https://www.opalco.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/12/RFP-Brand-
Refresh-2020.pdf. The goal is to “refresh the logo, look and feel of Orcas Power & Light to reflect 
the co-op as it operates today and its vision for the future.” The project is timed to support the 
20/20 Vision campaign, to get members’ attention for the plans outlined in the IRP, and to build 
awareness, excitement and ownership in the Co-op’s vision for renewables and local resilience. 
We hope members will notice “there’s something different about OPALCO.” 
 

29 of 73

https://energysavings.opalco.com/energy-savings/renewable-generation/community-solar/decatur-community-solar-project/
https://energysavings.opalco.com/energy-savings/renewable-generation/community-solar/decatur-community-solar-project/
https://www.opalco.com/resource-library/#rlfelectionsandgovernanceelections
https://www.opalco.com/resource-library/#rlfelectionsandgovernanceelections
https://www.opalco.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/12/RFP-Brand-Refresh-2020.pdf
https://www.opalco.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/12/RFP-Brand-Refresh-2020.pdf


Eastsound Bathroom/ADA Remodel 
The renovation project is coming along nicely with the new spaces now clearly visible. Check 
out the first coat of paint on the new drywall. Pictured below from left to right: Member Service 
(front) area, staff break room and main hallway. 

 
  
 
 

30 of 73



 

Snapshot Jan 2020 Board Meeting 
Net Subscribers as of December 31, 2019 

 

Gross Revenues 2019 

 
 Remaining revenues are still being closed for December Business.  

2,833 2,839 2,863 2,868 2,911 
2,951 2,993 3,045 3,044 3,052 3,065 3,069 

1,493 1,514 1,557 1,593 1,628 1,676 1,734 1,786 1,825 1,864 1,888 1,925 

1,418 1,445 1,490 1,528 1,573 1,627 1,674 1,734 1,769 1,813 1,851 1,897 

2,859 2,897 2,945 2,990 3,050 3,111 3,171 3,253 3,306 3,366 3,422 3,462 

 -

 500

 1,000

 1,500

 2,000

 2,500

 3,000

 3,500

 4,000

Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19

2019 Net Sub Count to Goal

Actual LTE Actual Fiber Goal Fiber Goal LTE

$6,173,284 
$5,981,568 

$-

$1,000,000 

$2,000,000 

$3,000,000 

$4,000,000 

$5,000,000 

$6,000,000 

$7,000,000 

Goal Actual

YTD 2019 Revenues

31 of 73



MEMORANDUM 
 
January 17, 2020 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Foster Hildreth 
 
RE:  Member Correspondence: Resolution 2-2019 
 
 
 
Staff have received 27 letters or emails from members regarding Resolution 2-2019. A 
spreadsheet is attached characterizing each correspondence. Two of those letters are supportive 
of Resolution 2-2019 and the rest are in opposition. Some of these letters are from members who 
have not previously commented. Most are from members who we have heard from in the previous 
two months. Copies of all correspondence are attached.  
 
There is an escalating tone of discord in this batch of correspondence, primarily from members 
of the Orcas Womens’ Coalition (OWC). Staff has reached out to OWC to invite continued 
collaboration toward our mutual vision of a sustainable future for our beloved islands – in terms 
of energy and environment – and, as is called for in the Governor’s Task Force report, a renewed 
invitation to work together as we address the complex forces that are challenging the health and 
sustainability of our island communities. 
 
Staff plans to meet with members of the OWC following the January board meeting to discuss 
any remaining issues. 
  

Name Island Summary Date 

Andy Finley Lopez longer - sites lack of member input, lack of research, has science 
quotes - opposed to resolution 1/8/2020 

Anne Hall Lopez short - rescind - salmon & whale health - renewable energy 1/8/2020 

Ashwini 
Bartolucci Lopez 

rescind; sophomore in college and came home to Lopez and is 
disappointed in resolution; engage members, rushed depiction, 
invest in other energy sources,  

1/12/2020 

Brian Rick Lopez rescind - lack of transparency 1/9/2020 
Cass Clark Lopez rescind 1/8/2020 

Chom 
Grecean Lopez 

rescind - longer - not enough member engagement, no need to adopt 
resolution, look at other studies, consult more experts, did not 
consider investments in other energy sources, did not represent 
members, don't squander hard earned trust of members 

1/13/2020 

Chuck 
Schietinger Lopez physicist - anti dam for economic reasons - encourages board to do 

their research with a link to an article he wants them to read 1/10/2020 

Deb & Don 
Oliff Orcas local science community supports dam breaching 1/16/2020 

Ellen Winter Lopez rescind 1/7/2020 

32 of 73



 
 
Name Island Summary Date 

Irene Skyriver Lopez support dam removal 1/9/2020 

Janet Alderton Orcas rescind; tell a better story about this issue; work towards 
common goals 1/14/2020 

Jenny DeGroot Orcas rescind - more public involvement 1/9/2020 
Jerry Leone Lopez commends resolution - attaches report and other article 1/1/2020 
Kai Sanburn  Lopez rescind - more member involvement 1/8/2020 

Karin Roemers-
Kleven San Juan rescind - more member input needed - consult local scientists - 

at Dec mtg; unable to come Jan 1/9/2020 

Keara Axelrod Lopez 
submitted letter in Dec - had a reply that board meeting are not 
at a time working people can attend - states its OPALCO board 
elite 

1/9/2020 

Ken Balcomb San Juan rescind - wants board to adopt anti dam sentiment 1/12/2020 

Kirman Taylor  Lopez resolution was hasty - wait for EIS study before making a stance 1/8/2020 

Liz Scranton Lopez 
rescind - get member buy-in, consult experts, antagonistic 
position against SJC council on further study; appoint a 
committee of experts 

1/9/2020 

Lorna Reese Lopez rescind - dams do not support the position of the members 1/8/2020 

Mary Gropp  Orcas 
rescind - thanks board for forward thinking aggressive stance to 
reduce carbon footprint but does not support LSRDs, does not 
support WRECA affiliation - lobbying 

1/6/2020 

Norris Carlson 
& Sandi Friel Orcas long detailed letter asking for board to rescind 1/13/20 

Pam Weeks Orcas new member - please rescind - consult members 1/13/20 

Sharon Abreau Orcas rescind - dams not sustainable - sites Jim Wadell 1/7/20 

Sue Bauer Orcas 
rescind now and ask for member input; does not adhere to 
strategic directives, board is suppressing open dialogue on this 
issue 

1/7/20 

Summer Moon 
Scriver   rescind - climate crisis - act now 1/8/20 

Todd Spalti Orcas against resolution and dams 1/11/20 
 

33 of 73



/�Ăŵ�ŽƉƉŽƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ǇŽƵƌ�ƌĞĐĞŶƚ�ƌĞƐŽůƵƟŽŶ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŽƉƉŽƐĞƐ�ƌĞŵŽǀŝŶŐ�Žƌ�ďƌĞĂĐŚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�>ŽǁĞƌ�^ŶĂŬĞ
ZŝǀĞƌ��ĂŵƐ�;>^Z�ƐͿ͕�ǁŚĞŶ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞ�ƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƌĞůŝĂďůĞ�ĂŶĚ�ůŽǁͲĐŽƐƚ�ůŽǁͲĐĂƌďŽŶ
ƌĞŶĞǁĂďůĞ�ƉŽǁĞƌ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĚŽŶΖƚ�ŚĂƌŵ�ĮƐŚ͘��

ϭ͘������/�ďĞůŝĞǀĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƐŽůƵƟŽŶ�ŝƐ�ŶŽƚ�ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�KW�>�K͛Ɛ�ǀĂůƵĞƐ͕�ƉƌŝŶĐŝƉůĞƐ�ĂŶĚ
ĚŝƌĞĐƟǀĞƐ
dŚĞ�ĂĚŽƉƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ZĞƐŽůƵƟŽŶ�ϮͲϮϬϭϵ�ǁĂƐ�ĚŽŶĞ�ǁŝƚŚŽƵƚ�ĂŶǇ�ŽƵƚƌĞĂĐŚ�ƚŽ�KW�>�K�ŵĞŵďĞƌͲŽǁŶĞƌƐ͕
ŝŶĐŽŶƐŝƐƚĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�KW�>�KΖƐ�ƉƌŝŶĐŝƉůĞƐ͕�ǀĂůƵĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĐ�ĚŝƌĞĐƟǀĞƐ͘

Ă͘�&ĂŝůĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂĚŚĞƌĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŝŶĐŝƉůĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƉŝƌŝƚ�ŽĨ�ĐŽͲŽƉĞƌĂƟǀĞ�ĚĞĐŝƐŝŽŶͲŵĂŬŝŶŐ�ďǇ�ŶŽƚ�ĞŶŐĂŐŝŶŐ
ŵĞŵďĞƌͲŽǁŶĞƌƐ�ŝŶ�ĚĞĐŝĚŝŶŐ�ĂŶ�ŝƐƐƵĞ�ŽĨ�ŐƌĞĂƚ�ƉƵďůŝĐ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶ�ĂŶĚ�ŽŶĞ�ŽŶ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƚŚĞ
ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ƉŽƐƐĞƐƐĞƐ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĂďůĞ�ĞǆƉĞƌƟƐĞ͘��

ď͘�&ĂŝůĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂĐƚ�ŝŶ�ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ǀĂůƵĞƐ�ŽĨ�ŵĞŵďĞƌͲŽǁŶĞƌƐ�ǁŚŽ�ƌĞŐĂƌĚ�ƐĂůŵŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƌĐĂ
ƌĞƐƚŽƌĂƟŽŶ�ĂƐ�Ă�ƉƵďůŝĐ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ŝŵƉĞƌĂƟǀĞ͘

Đ͘�&ĂŝůĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶƟƌĞ�ďŽĚǇ�ŽĨ�ƌĞůĞǀĂŶƚ�ƚĞĐŚŶŝĐĂů�ĞǀŝĚĞŶĐĞ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ďĞŶĞĮƚƐ�ŽĨ
ĚĂŵ�ƌĞŵŽǀĂů�ĨŽƌ�ƐĂůŵŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƌĐĂ�ƐƵƌǀŝǀĂů�ĂŶĚ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�ĨŽƌ�ĂƐƐƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞĚ�ƌĞůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ
ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ͘

�
Ϯ͘������/�ďĞůŝĞǀĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝƚ�ǁĂƐ�ŝŵƉƌƵĚĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ŵĂŬĞ�Ă�ƌƵƐŚĞĚ�ĚĞĐŝƐŝŽŶ�ǁŚŝůĞ�ƐƚƵĚŝĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƵŶĚĞƌǁĂǇ
dŚĞ�ĨĞĚĞƌĂů��/^�ƐƚƵĚǇ�ŽŶ�ǁŚĞƚŚĞƌ�ďƌĞĂĐŚŝŶŐ�Žƌ�ƌĞŵŽǀĂů�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�>^Z�Ɛ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞ�ƐĂůŵŽŶ�ƌƵŶƐ
ŝƐ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ǁĂǇ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŽ�ŝƐ�ƚŚĞ�t��ƐƚĂƚĞ�ƐƚƵĚǇ͕ �ĨƵŶĚĞĚ�dŚĞ�t��ƐƚĂƚĞ�ůĞŐŝƐůĂƚƵƌĞ�ƉĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�'ŽǀĞƌŶŽƌ Ɛ͛
^Z<t�dĂƐŬ�&ŽƌĐĞ Ɛ͛�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĂƟŽŶ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĨŽĐƵƐĞƐ�ŽŶ�ĞĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ŝŵƉĂĐƚƐ�ŽŶ�ǀĂƌŝŽƵƐ
ƐƚĂŬĞŚŽůĚĞƌƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ďƌĞĂĐŚŝŶŐ͕�ƌĞŵŽǀŝŶŐ�Žƌ�ƌĞƚĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�>^Z�Ɛ͘��dŚĞ�ƋƵĞƐƟŽŶ�ŝƐ�ǁŚǇ�KW�>�K
ďŽĂƌĚ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ƌƵƐŚ�ƚŽ�ŽƉƉŽƐĞ�>^Z��ƌĞŵŽǀĂů�ǁŚĞŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚƵĚŝĞƐ�ŽĨ�ŝƚƐ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ǁĂǇ͘
ZƵƐŚŝŶŐ�ŝŶƚŽ�Ă�ĚĞĐŝƐŝŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚŽƵƚ�ǁĂŝƟŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚƵĚŝĞƐ�Žƌ�ƚŚĞƌĞĨŽƌĞ�ǁŝƚŚŽƵƚ�ďĞƐƚ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ
ƐĐŝĞŶĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƵŶĚĞƌƐƚĂŶĚŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ŝƚƐ�ĐŽŶƐĞƋƵĞŶĐĞƐ�ŝƐ�ƚŚƵƐ�ŝŵƉƌƵĚĞŶƚ͘�����
�
ϯ͘������/�ƚŚŝŶŬ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�ŵƵĐŚ�ƚŽ�ůŽƐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ůŝƩůĞ�ƚŽ�ŐĂŝŶ
�ŽŶŶĞǀŝůůĞ�WŽǁĞƌ��ĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƟŽŶ�ŝƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĂŐĞŶĐǇ�ƚĂƐŬĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŵĂƌŬĞƟŶŐ�ƉŽǁĞƌ�ĨƌŽŵ�ĨĞĚĞƌĂů�ĚĂŵƐ

ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�>^Z�Ɛ͘�KĨ�ƚŚĞ�ϭϮϰ�ƉƵďůŝĐ�ƵƟůŝƟĞƐ
ϭ

�;ĐŽͲŽƉƐ͕�Wh�Ɛ͕�ĂŶĚ�DhE/ƐͿ�ƐĞƌǀĞĚ�ďǇ��W��ĂŶĚ

ƚŚƵƐ�ďĞŶĞĮƟŶŐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐŝƚǇ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�>^Z�Ɛ͕�ŽŶůǇ�Ϯϳ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞŵ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĂĚŽƉƚĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƐŽůƵƟŽŶ
Ϯ

͘
dŚŝƐ�ŵĞĂŶƐ�ĂůŵŽƐƚ�ϭϬϬ�ƉƵďůŝĐ�ƵƟůŝƟĞƐ�ĚŝĚ�ŶŽƚ�ŵĂŬĞ�ƉƵďůŝĐ�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ƌĞŐĂƌĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�>ŽǁĞƌ�^ŶĂŬĞ
ZŝǀĞƌ��ĂŵƐ͘��Ɛ�ƚŚĞ�ŽŶůǇ�ƵƟůŝƚǇ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŝƚƐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƚĞƌƌŝƚŽƌǇ�ĞŶƟƌĞůǇ�ƐƵƌƌŽƵŶĚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�^ĂůŝƐŚ�^ĞĂ͕
KW�>�K Ɛ͛�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐŚŝƉ�ŚĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽƐƚ�ƚŽ�ůŽƐĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚƌĞĂƚƐ�ƚŽ�ƐĂůŵŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƌĐĂ�ƐƵƌǀŝǀĂů͘�KƵƌ
ĞĐŽŶŽŵǇ�ĂŶĚ�ŝĚĞŶƟƚǇ�ĂƌĞ�ŝŶƟŵĂƚĞůǇ�ƟĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞŵ͘�DŽƌĞŽǀĞƌ͕ �ǁĞ�ŚĂǀĞ�ůŝƩůĞ�ƚŽ�ŐĂŝŶ͘�^ŽŵĞ
ƵƟůŝƟĞƐ�ďǇ�ĐŽŶƚƌĂƐƚ�ƐĞƌǀĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�Žƌ�ĐƵƐƚŽŵĞƌƐ�ǁŚŽƐĞ�ůŝǀĞůŝŚŽŽĚ�ĚĞƉĞŶĚƐ�ŽŶ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞĚ
ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�>^Z�Ɛ�ƚŽ�ŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶ�ŶĂǀŝŐĂƟŽŶĂů�ďĞŶĞĮƚƐ�;Ğ͘Ő͘�ǁŚĞĂƚ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚͿ͘�KW�>�K�ǁŽƵůĚ
ďĞ�ǁŝƐĞ�ƚŽ�ďĂĐŬ�ĂǁĂǇ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚĂŬŝŶŐ�Ă�ŵŝŶŽƌŝƚǇ�ĐŽŶƚƌŽǀĞƌƐŝĂů�ƉŽƐŝƟŽŶ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƐĞĞŵƐ�ƚŽ�ŚƵƌƚ�ŵŽƌĞ�ƚŚĂŶ
ŚĞůƉ�ŝƚƐ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐŚŝƉ Ɛ͛�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ͘
�
ϰ͘������dŚĞƌĞ�ĂƌĞ��ŽƚŚĞƌ�ĐŽƐƚͲĞīĞĐƟǀĞ�ĂŶĚ�ůŽǁͲĐĂƌďŽŶ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƉŽǁĞƌ�ĨƌŽŵ�>^Z�Ɛ͘
�Ɛ�ĨŽƌ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ƌĞůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ͕�Et��ŶĞƌŐǇ��ŽĂůŝƟŽŶ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�Ă�ϰͲƉĂŐĞ�ĂŶĂůǇƐŝƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƐŚŽǁƐ
ƚŚĞƌĞ�ĂƌĞ�ƐƵĸĐŝĞŶƚ�ĐůĞĂŶ͕�ĐŽƐƚͲĞīĞĐƟǀĞ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞ�ƌĞƉůĂĐĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�ŝĨ�ĚĂŵƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƚŽ�ďĞ
ƌĞŵŽǀĞĚ͘�
�

34 of 73



ϱ͘������dŚŝƐ�ĂĐƟŽŶ�ŝƐ�ŝŶĐŽŶƐŝƐƚĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉŽƐŝƟŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ǀĂůƵĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵŶƚǇ͕�ƚŚĞ�ŐŽǀĞƌŶŽƌ�ĂŶĚ
ƚŚĞ�ƐƚĂƚĞ�ůĞŐŝƐůĂƚƵƌĞ͘
KW�>�K Ɛ͛�ƌĞƐŽůƵƟŽŶ�ŽƉƉŽƐĞƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚĂŬĞŚŽůĚĞƌ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ƐƚƵĚǇ�;ĐĂůůŝŶŐ�ŝƚ�͞ǁĂƐƚĞĨƵů�ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚĂǆƉĂǇĞƌƐ
ŵŽŶĞǇ͟Ϳ͘�dŚŝƐ�ƉŽƐŝƟŽŶ�ŝƐ�ŶŽƚ�ŽŶůǇ�ŝŶĐŽŶƐŝƐƚĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŽƵƌ�ǀĂůƵĞƐ�ĂƐ�KW�>�K�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ͕�ďƵƚ�ŵĂǇ
ĂůƐŽ�ďĞ�ĂŐĂŝŶƐƚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚƐ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚƵĚǇ͕ �ĂŐĂŝŶƐƚ�ƚŚĞ
ƉŽƐŝƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�'ŽǀĞƌŶŽƌ�ǁŚŽƐĞ�ŽĸĐĞ�ŝƐ�ĐŽŶĚƵĐƟŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚƵĚǇ͕ �ĂŶĚ�ĂŐĂŝŶƐƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ
ƐƚĂƚĞ�ůĞŐŝƐůĂƚƵƌĞ�ǁŚŽ�ĨƵŶĚĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚƵĚǇ͘�dŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�Ă�ǀĞƌǇ�ƵŶƉŽƉƵůĂƌ�ƉŽƐŝƟŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�KW�>�K��ŽĂƌĚ�ƚŽ
ƚĂŬĞ�ĨŽƌ�ǀĞƌǇ�ůŝƩůĞ�ŽďǀŝŽƵƐ�ŐĂŝŶ͘

/�ŚŽƉĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ǇŽƵ�ǁŝůů�ĐĂƌĞĨƵůůǇ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌ�ŚŽǁ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽĐĞĞĚ�ŐŽŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌǁĂƌĚ͘��dŚĂŶŬ�ǇŽƵ�ĨŽƌ�ǇŽƵƌ
ĂƩĞŶƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŵĂƩĞƌ͘

^ŝŶĐĞƌĞůǇ͕
�ŶĚĞ�&ŝŶůĞǇ
>ŽƉĞǌ�/ƐůĂŶĚ

ϭ
�ŚƩƉƐ͗ͬͬǁǁǁ͘ďƉĂ͘ŐŽǀͬŶĞǁƐͬƉƵďƐͬ'ĞŶĞƌĂůWƵďůŝĐĂƟŽŶƐͬŐŝͲ�W�Ͳ&ĂĐƚƐ͘ƉĚĨ

Ϯ
�ŚƩƉƐ͗ͬͬǁǁǁ͘ŶĞǁƐĚĂƚĂ͘ĐŽŵͬĐůĞĂƌŝŶŐͺƵƉͬĞŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚͬƉƵďůŝĐͲƵƟůŝƟĞƐͲĂĚŽƉƚͲƌĞƐŽůƵƟŽŶƐͲƐƵƉƉŽƌƟŶŐͲƐŶĂŬĞͲƌŝǀĞƌͲ

ĚĂŵƐͬĂƌƟĐůĞͺϲϲϮĐϰϱĞĐͲϭϴϲĞͲϭϭĞĂͲϵĨϱĐͲϴĩϵĚĐϳĚϬĐϴϬ͘Śƚŵů
�

35 of 73



36 of 73



�ĞĂƌ��ŽĂƌĚ�DĞŵďĞƌƐ͗

/�Ăŵ�Ă�^ŽƉŚŽŵŽƌĞ�Ăƚ�DŝůůƐ��ŽůůĞŐĞ�ĂŶĚ�/�ǁĂƐ�ĚŝƐĂƉƉŽŝŶƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŵĞ�ďĂĐŬ�ƚŽ�>ŽƉĞǌ�ĨŽƌ��ŚƌŝƐƚŵĂƐ�ďƌĞĂŬ�ƚŽ
ĮŶĚ�ŽƵƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƉŝĞĐĞ�ŽĨ�ŶĞǁƐ͘��ƚ�ĐŽůůĞŐĞ�/�Ăŵ�ůĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ƐƚĂŶĚ�ƵƉ�ĨŽƌ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ŝƐƐƵĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�ǁŚĂƚ�/�Ăŵ
ĚŽŝŶŐ�ŶŽǁ͘�KW�>�K͕�ǁŚŽ�ŝƐ�Ă�ĐŽŽƉĞƌĂƟǀĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƵƉƉŽƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƐĞƌǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ĚŝĚ�ŶŽƚ�ůŝƐƚĞŶ�ƚŽ�ŝƚƐ
ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ͘�/�ǁĂƐ�ƐŚŽĐŬĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĮŶĚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŽƵƚ͊�/Ŷ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ͕�/�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ǇŽƵ�ůĞĂƌŶ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĮĂƐĐŽ�ĂŶĚ�ŬĞĞƉ
Ăůů�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĐŽŽƉĞƌĂƟǀĞ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĞĚ�ŽĨ�Ăůů�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ͘�

/�Ăŵ�ǁƌŝƟŶŐ�ƚŽ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�KW�>�K��ŽĂƌĚ�ƌĞƐĐŝŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ϮͲϮϬϭϵ�ƌĞƐŽůƵƟŽŶ�ƌĞŐĂƌĚŝŶŐ��ƌĞŵŽǀĂů�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ
>ŽǁĞƌ�^ŶĂŬĞ�ZŝǀĞƌ�ĚĂŵƐ�;>^Z�ƐͿ͘�/�ĚŽ�ŶŽƚ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĂŶǇ�ƌĞƐŽůƵƟŽŶ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŽƉƉŽƐĞƐ�ƌĞŵŽǀŝŶŐ�Žƌ�ďƌĞĂĐŚŝŶŐ
ƚŚĞ�>^Z�Ɛ͕�ǁŚĞŶ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞ�ƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƌĞůŝĂďůĞ�ĂŶĚ�ůŽǁͲĐŽƐƚ�ůŽǁͲĐĂƌďŽŶ�ƌĞŶĞǁĂďůĞ
ƉŽǁĞƌ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĚŽŶΖƚ�ŚĂƌŵ�ĮƐŚ͘��

dŚĞ�KW�>�K��ŽĂƌĚ�ĚŝĚ�ŶŽƚ�ĂĚŚĞƌĞ�ƚŽ�ŝƚƐ�ŽǁŶ�ƉƌŝŶĐŝƉůĞƐ�ŽĨ�ĞŶŐĂŐŝŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐŚŝƉ�ďĞĨŽƌĞ�ŵĂŬŝŶŐ
ƐƵĐŚ�ĂŶ�ŝŵƉŽƌƚĂŶƚ�ĐŽŶƚƌŽǀĞƌƐŝĂů�ĚĞĐŝƐŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ǀĞƌǇ�ŵƵĐŚ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ�ŵĞ͘��tĞ�ĂƌĞ�Ă�ŵĞŵďĞƌ
ŽƌŐĂŶŝǌĂƟŽŶ͘

dŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ĚŝĚ�ŶŽƚ�ŶĞĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŐŽ�ŽƵƚ�ŽĨ�ŝƚƐ�ǁĂǇ�ƚŽ�ĂĚŽƉƚ�ƐƵĐŚ�Ă�ƌĞƐŽůƵƟŽŶ�Ăƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƟŵĞ͘��tŚĂƚ�ŝƐ�ƚŚĞ
ƌĞĂƐŽŶŝŶŐ�ďĞŚŝŶĚ�ƐƵĐŚ�Ă�ƌƵƐŚĞĚ�ĚĞĐŝƐŝŽŶ͕��ĞƐƉĞĐŝĂůůǇ�ǁŚŝůĞ�ĐƌƵĐŝĂů�ĨĞĚĞƌĂů�ĂŶĚ�t��ƐƚĂƚĞ�ƐƚƵĚŝĞƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ
>^Z�Ɛ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚƐ�ŽŶ�ƐĂůŵŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƌĐĂ�ĂƌĞ�ĨƵŶĚĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƵŶĚĞƌǁĂǇ͍

/ƚ�ĚŽĞƐ�ŶŽƚ�ĂƉƉĞĂƌ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ĞŶŐĂŐĞĚ�ŝŶ�ůŝƐƚĞŶŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ĞǆƉĞƌƚƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĮĞůĚ�ŽĨ�ƐĂůŵŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƌĐĂ�ǁŚĂůĞƐ͕
ĞǀĞŶ�ƚŚŽƵŐŚ�ŵĂŶǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ĞǆƉĞƌƚƐ�ƌĞƐŝĚĞ�ŚĞƌĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�^ĂŶ�:ƵĂŶƐ͘��tŚǇ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ĞǆƉĞƌƚƐ�ŶŽƚ
ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĞĚ�ďĞĨŽƌĞ�ƐƵĐŚ�ĂŶ�ŝŵƉŽƌƚĂŶƚ�ƌĞƐŽůƵƟŽŶ�ǁĂƐ�ǀŽƚĞĚ�ŽŶ͍��

/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ŝŶ�ĐŽƐƚͲĞīĞĐƟǀĞ͕�ůŽǁͲĐĂƌďŽŶ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞƐ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ƌĞƉůĂĐĞ�ĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐŝƚǇ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�>^Z�Ɛ
ǁŝƚŚŽƵƚ�ƚŚƌĞĂƚĞŶŝŶŐ�ƐƵƌǀŝǀĂů�ŽĨ�ƐĂůŵŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƌĐĂƐ͕�ǇĞƚ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ƐĞĞŵƐ�ƚŽ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ůŝƩůĞ�ĚŝƐĐƵƐƐŝŽŶ�Žƌ
ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ͘��tŚǇ�ĂƌĞ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ŶŽƚ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ͍

/�Ăŵ�ĂůƐŽ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�KW�>�K�ďŽĂƌĚ�ŚĂƐ�ƚĂŬĞŶ�ĂŶ�ƵŶŶĞĐĞƐƐĂƌŝůǇ�ĂŶƚĂŐŽŶŝƐƟĐ�ƉŽƐŝƟŽŶ�ĂŐĂŝŶƐƚ�ƚŚĞ
^ĂŶ�:ƵĂŶ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ǁŚŽ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�Ă�ƐƚĂŬĞŚŽůĚĞƌ�ƐƚƵĚǇ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ĂŶĚ�ĞĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ
>^Z�Ɛ͘�dŚĞ�^ŽƵƚŚĞƌŶ�ZĞƐŝĚĞŶƚ�KƌĐĂ�dĂƐŬ�&ŽƌĐĞ�ĂŶĚ��'ŽǀĞƌŶŽƌ�/ŶƐůĞĞ�ďŽƚŚ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚƵĚǇ͘��tŚǇ�ĚŝĚ
ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ƚĂŬĞ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĂŶƚĂŐŽŶŝƐƟĐ�ƉŽƐŝƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƌƵƐŚ�ƚŽ�ƉĂƐƐ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƐŽůƵƟŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚŽƵƚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ŝŶƉƵƚ͍

/Ŷ�ƐƵŵŵĂƌǇ͕ �/�Ăŵ�ĞǆƚƌĞŵĞůǇ�ĚŝƐĂƉƉŽŝŶƚĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƵƉƐĞƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�KW�>�K��ŽĂƌĚ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƐĞĞŵƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĂĐƟŶŐ
ůŝŬĞ�Ă�ĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ�ƉƌŝǀĂƚĞ�ĞŶƟƚǇ�ƌĂƚŚĞƌ�ƚŚĞŶ�Ă�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ŽƌŐĂŶŝǌĂƟŽŶ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŐŽŽĚ�ŽĨ�ŽƵƌ�ĐŽƵŶƚǇ͘

WůĞĂƐĞ�ƌĞƐĐŝŶĚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƐŽůƵƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƉƉŽŝŶƚ�Ă�ĐŽŵŵŝƩĞĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƐƚĂŬĞŚŽůĚĞƌƐ�ƚŽ�ƐƚƵĚǇ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŝƐƐƵĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁ
ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŶǇ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�Ăƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƟŵĞ͘�dŚĂŶŬ�ǇŽƵ͊

^ŝŶĐĞƌĞůǇ͕
�ƐŚǁŝŶŝ��ĂƌƚŽůƵĐĐŝ
ϰϱϱϵ��ĞŶƚĞƌ�ZŽĂĚ
>ŽƉĞǌ�/ƐůĂŶĚ͕�t��ϵϴϮϲϭ
�ĞůůƉŚŽŶĞ͗�ϯϲϬͲϲϮϮͲϱϭϱϯ�,ŽŵĞ͗�ϰϲϴͲϰϯϴϯ

37 of 73



*

38 of 73



>ŽǁĞƌ�^ŶĂŬĞ
ZŝǀĞƌ��ĂŵƐ�ďĞ�ƌĞƐĐŝŶĚĞĚ͘
�ĂƐƐĂŶĚƌĂ��ůĂƌŬ
>ŽƉĞǌ�/ƐůĂŶĚ

39 of 73



13 January 2020 
 
Sent via email to contacttheboard@opalco.com  
 
RE: Request for consideration to rescind the OPALCO Resolution 2-2019 “Supporting the 
Federal Columbia River Power System, Recognizing its Role in Environmental Stewardship, and 
Opposing Removal of the Lower Snake River Dams (LSRDs)” 
 
Dear OPALCO Board of Directors, 
 
I am writing to request that the Board rescind the Resolution 2-2019.  
 
I attended the OPALCO Board meeting on September 19th, 2019 at Lopez Firehall when the 
board considered adopting the resolution. At the meeting, I raised questions and concerns as well as 

voiced my objections to the board adopting the resolution. As a lone dissenting voice in the room, my 
objections were overruled. The Board adopted the resolution as proposed in the board packet.   
 
I also attended the OPALCO Board meeting on December 1X, 2019 along with almost 20 other 
concerned members/owners and experts. We expressed overwhelming concerns and objections to the 
adopted resolution and requested that the board reconsider its decision. The board agreed to 
reconsider the resolution at the next boarding.  
 
I am grateful that the board is responding to its members. As the board deliberates whether to rescind 
the resolution at its next meeting on January 3rd, 2020, I would like to request in writing that the board 
rescind the Resolution 2-2019.  
 
The problem I see with the resolution is that the board:  

1) did not adhere to OPALCO’s own principle of democratic member control--engaging 
its membership to participate in such an important controversial decision as adopting 
this resolution; 
2) did not need to go out of its way to adopt such a resolution (only 27 utilities out of 
124 public utilities served by the Bonneville Power Administration, the marketer of 
electricity from the LSRDs, adopted the resolution); 
3) did not need to rush into the decision while crucial federal and WA state studies on 
the LSRDs and their impacts on salmon and orca are underway; 
4) did not consult with leading experts and scientists in the field of salmon and orca 
whales, many of whom reside here in the San Juans; 
5) did not seriously consider that investments in cost-effective, low-carbon energy 
alternatives could replace electricity from the LSRDs without threatening survival of 
salmon and orcas; 
6) did not represent well the interests of its membership base—there is no other utility 
whose membership’s geography, way of life, economy and identity are more 
interconnected with the well-being of the salmon and orcas than OPALCO;  
7) by opposing the WA stakeholder engagement study on social and economic impacts 
of the LSRDs calling it “wasteful use of taxpayers’ money” took an unnecessarily 

40 of 73

mailto:contacttheboard@opalco.com


antagonistic position against the San Juan County Council who supports the need for the 
study, against the Southern Resident Orca Task Force who recommended the study, 
against the Governor Inslee whose office undertakes the study, and against the WA 
State Legislature who funded the study. 
8) does not need to squander the hard-earned trust and social/political capital OPALCO 
has with its members, the county and other levels of government this way. The board 
has a much bigger fish to fry and could use all the trust and social capital it can get to, 
for example, persuade members to embrace anticipated rate hikes so OPALCO has the 
resources necessary to replace aging cables and shift drastically from 1% to 50% local 
generation in roughly a decade in light of BPA’s contract coming to an end in 2028.  

 
I hope the board makes the right decision for the long-term benefits of its owners/members. Thank you 
very much for your consideration. 
 
Yours sincerely, 
  
Chom Greacen, Lopez Island 

41 of 73



/RZHU�6QDNH�5LYHU�'DPV�DQG�23$/&2������������������������������������������-DQXDU\���������
:ULWWHQ�E\�&KDUOHV�6FKLHWLQJHU��3K\VLFLVW������)HUU\�5RDG��/RSH]�,VODQG
�
7KH�ORZHU�6QDNH�5LYHU�GDPV��,FH�+DUERU�'DP��/RZHU�0RQXPHQWDO�'DP��/LWWOH�*RRVH�'DP��DQG�/RZHU
*UDQLWH�'DP��QHHG�WR�EH�UHPRYHG�SXUHO\�IRU�HFRQRPLF�UHDVRQV��7KHVH�IRXU�GDPV�ZRXOG�EH�UHPRYHG�LI
WKH\�ZHUH�EHLQJ�RSHUDWHG�E\�D�IRU�SURILW�FRUSRUDWLRQ�DQG�QRW�WKH�%3$��SDUW�RI�WKH�IHGHUDO�SRZHU�DJHQF\
ZKLFK�LV�����ELOOLRQ�LQ�GHEW�
�
<HV��UHPRYLQJ�WKH�GDPV�ZRXOG�FHUWDLQO\�KHOS�RXU�ORFDO�6RXWKHUQ�5HVLGHQW�2UFD�:KDOHV�DQG�UXQV�RI�ERWK
&KLQRRN�DQG�6WHHOKHDG�6DOPRQ��+RZHYHU��IURP�D�SXUH�HFRQRPLF�EDVLV�WKH�GDPV�VKRXOG�EH�UHPRYHG�
5HPRYLQJ�WKHVH�GDPV�ZLOO�LPSURYH��ORZHU��WKH�HOHFWULF�UDWHV�LQ�WKH�UHJLRQ��>�@�,�FRXOG�HDVLO\�LQFOXGH
PDQ\�PRUH�VWXGLHV�DQG�UHIHUHQFHV�VKRZLQJ�WKDW�WKH�UHPRYDO�LV�WKH�FRUUHFW�HFRQRPLF�GHFLVLRQ��EXW�,�ZDQW
WR�HQFRXUDJH�WKH�ERDUG�WR�UHDG�DW�OHDVW�WKH�RQH�UHIHUHQFH�FLWHG�
�
,�VWURQJO\�HQFRXUDJH�WKH�23$/&2�ERDUG�WR�GR�WKHLU�KRPHZRUN�DQG�OHDUQ�WKDW�WKH�UHPRYDO�RI�WKHVH�GDPV
LV�LQ�RXU�ORQJ�WHUP�HFRQRPLF�LQWHUHVW�LQGHSHQGHQW�RI�WKH�FRQVLGHUDEOH�HQYLURQPHQWDO�EHQHILWV�
�
5HIHUHQFH�
���7KH�QHZ�ZHDSRQ�LQ�WKH�SXVK�WR�UHPRYH�GDPV��(FRQRPLFV��-HUHP\�3��-DFREV��(	(�1HZV�UHSRUWHU
:HGQHVGD\��2FWREHU�����������KWWSV���ZZZ�HHQHZV�QHW�VSHFLDOBUHSRUWV�EORRGEDWK�VWRULHV�����������

42 of 73



43 of 73



44 of 73



 
 
January 14, 2020 
 
Dear OPALCO Board, 
I was at the OPALCO Open House in Eastsound in October where the scary graph extrapolating 
the electricity demand for the next decades was displayed. I want you to know that I 
understand why our electricity supply must be made “firm”. I get it. 
 
I was the person who suggested that energy storage options, such as hydrogen made from 
renewable energy sources, might become viable in the future. I have since learned that 
hydrogen gas is very corrosive and, of course, it is potentially explosive. Despite these 
difficulties, I remain optimistic that energy storage options will become available at utility scale. 
There is Highview’s 50 Mega Watt CRYO Battery that will be installed in Vermont*. The National 
Renewable Energy Laboratory has a project that will incorporate technology to create, store, 
and utilize green hydrogen to make electricity at sites with existing wind turbine and or solar 
cell facilities.  
 
As a scientist and a geek for renewable energy technologies, I am fascinated by this. I know the 
time to when this will be a cost-effective option is unpredictable. I understand, also, that we 
need to accelerate our community’s transition to much greater energy efficiency so as to 
reduce the slope of the scary projected electricity demand curve. 
 
This is all an introduction as to why I am asking you to rescind Resolution 2-2019 that opposes 
removal of the Lower Snake River dams. If you stop antagonizing the Orcas Women’s Coalition, 
we can work together to accelerate our community’s transition to much greater energy 
efficiency and more quickly reduce the slope of the scary projected electricity demand curve. 
 
I have some ideas for more effectively communicating with our members about the benefits of 
OPALCO’s programs such as Step-It-Up and incentives for energy-saving options. As I said, I am 
a scientist. It took me years before I was finally convinced by an artist friend that data will not 
persuade people. What works is a compelling narrative or story. 
 
For example, it has been obvious to me for over 40 years that the accumulation of carbon 
dioxide in our atmosphere is a problem that must be addressed. But not until 2019, when Greta 
Thunberg burst into our global consciousness, did millions of people come together from all 
over our planet to demand change. Greta said, “Listen to the scientists”, but it was her story 
that captured people’s attention. OPALCO needs stories from individual members that describe 
how OPALCO’s offerings have changed their life for the better. OPALCO needs photographs of 
our members who have used OPALCO’s programs and actual quotes from these members. 
These are the stories that will capture the attention of our general membership and accelerate 
our transition to renewable electricity firmed by storage that we can all support.   
 

45 of 73



In conclusion, I ask you to rescind OPALCO Resolution 2-2019 so that OPALCO can work with 
the Orcas Women’s Coalition towards our common goals instead of wasting time and energy 
arguing over a resolution that was lobbied for by a fossil fuel interests-backed entity, NRECA.  
 
Janet Alderton 
Deer Harbor 
OPALCO member since 2003 

 
 

*Highview Power’s proprietary CRYOBattery technology utilizes air, which is 
cooled, stored as a liquid, then converted back to gas to drive a turbine which 
produces electricity. This is the only long-duration energy storage solution 
available today that can provide up to weeks of energy storage, can be scaled to 
grid-sized capacity, has no geographic constraints, and uses no exotic metals or 
harmful chemicals. Highview Power enables critical operations for utilities and 
independent power producers by delivering the lowest cost clean energy storage 
solution for large scale, long-duration applications. 

  

46 of 73



1

Kelly Koral

From: Jennifer De Groot <degroot_jennifer@yahoo.com>
Sent: Thursday, January 9, 2020 7:38 AM
To: Kelly Koral; Kelly Koral
Subject: Please rescind Resolution

Please add my name to the list of OPALCO members requesting the Board rescind Resolution 2‐
2019 "Supporting the Federal Columbia River Power System, Recognizing its role in Environmental Stewardship, and Opp
osing the Removal of the Lower Snake River Dams". 
 
I am an OPALCO member, a fish biologist, and an Orcas Women's Coalition member. 
 
I do not believe this resolution was passed with sufficient public involvement from the membership and I strongly disagr
ee with the intent of this resolution opposing the removal of the Lower Snake River Dams.  OPALCO's resolution 
maintains the status quo and does not go far enough to protect our salmon stocks on the Columbia River and our 
endangered Southern Resident Killer Whales. Please rescind this resolution. 
 
Thank you. 
Jenny 
 
Jenny De Groot 
290 Mount Woolard Road 
Eastsound, WA 98245 
360 376‐4013 

47 of 73



$V�DQ�23$/&2�UDWHSD\HU��,�VHQG�\RX�P\�UHVSRQVH�WR�WKH�%RDUG¶V�RQJRLQJ�GLVFXVVLRQV��DQG�5HVROXWLRQ��������
UHJDUGLQJ�WKH�IRXU�/RZHU�6QDNH�5LYHU�GDPV�
�
7KRVH�GDPV�KDYH�ERWK�XSVWUHDP�DQG�GRZQVWUHDP�SDVVDJH�DQG�DUH�QRW�EORFNLQJ�KDELWDW�DFFHVV�DV�VRPH�FODLP��
7KH�WUXH�EORFNDJH�LV�WKH�UHVXOW�RI�,GDKR�3RZHU�&RPSDQ\¶V�+HOOV�&DQ\RQ��WKUHH�GDP�FRPSOH[��QRQH�RI�ZKLFK
FRQWDLQ�DQ\�ILVK�SDVVDJH�PHDVXUHV�ZKDWVRHYHU���)RU�VRPH�UHDVRQ��WKLV�FRPSOH[�KDV�HVFDSHG�VFUXWLQ\�IRU�LWV
FRQWULEXWLRQ�WR�WKH�VDOPRQ�VLWXDWLRQ�
�
2YHU�WKH�SDVW����\HDUV��WKH�ILVK�SRSXODWLRQ�KDV�LQFUHDVHG�VLJQLILFDQWO\��ZKLOH�2UFD�QXPEHUV�KDYH�GHFOLQHG���(YHQ�LI
PRUH�VDOPRQ�FRPH�GRZQULYHU�WKURXJK�WKH�/RZHU�6QDNH�5LYHU�GDPV��DQG�RI�FRXUVH�EHORZ�+HOOV�&DQ\RQ�GDPV���WKLV
ZLOO�QRW�VDYH�2UFDV���,QGHHG��VRPH�RI�WKH�ORJLF�VXSSRUWLQJ�GDP�UHPRYDO�±�PRUH�ILVK�HTXDOV�PRUH�2UFDV�±�LV�IDXOW\
EHFDXVH�ILVK�QXPEHUV�KDYH�LPSURYHG�ZKLOH�2UFD�QXPEHUV�KDYH�ZDQHG���6ROXWLRQV�DUH�PXFK�FORVHU�WR�KRPH�
�

%DQQLQJ�DOO�VDOPRQ�ILVKLQJ�LQ�3XJHW�6RXQG�
&RQWUROOLQJ�SHVWLFLGHV�DQG�RWKHU�KXPDQ�FDXVHG�FKHPLFDO�LQSXWV�
5HGXFLQJ�FRQWDLQHU�VKLS�WUDIILF�E\�UHRSHQLQJ�WKH�FRQWDLQHU�SRUWV�LQ�3RUWODQG�9DQFRXYHU��DQG
2SSRVLQJ�WKH�SURSRVHG�QHZ�QDWXUDO�JDV�H[SRUW�IDFLOLW\�LQ�%ULWLVK�&ROXPELD�

�
&RPELQHG��DOO�WKHVH�DFWLRQV�FDQ�EH�LPSOHPHQWHG�\HDUV�HDUOLHU�WKDQ�UHPRYDO�RI�WKH�/RZHU�6QDNH�5LYHU�GDPV���7KH
FRQWURYHUV\�RYHU�GDP�UHPRYDO�LV�GLYHUWLQJ�D�JUHDW�GHDO�RI�DWWHQWLRQ�DQG�PRQH\�DZD\�IURP�WKH�LPSRUWDQW�WDVN�RI
VDYLQJ�WKH�LFRQLF�ZKDOHV�
�
,�FRPPHQG�WKH�%RDUG�IRU�5HVROXWLRQ��������DQG�IRU�WKH�%RDUG¶V�ZLGH�UDQJLQJ��WKRXJKWIXO�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�PDQ\
PDWWHUV�VXUURXQGLQJ�D�FOHDQ��UHOLDEOH�SRZHU�VXSSO\�YLV�j�YLV�D�KHDOWK\�HFRV\VWHP���,I�KHOSIXO��,�EHOLHYH�WKDW�HLWKHU
%ULDQ�6LOYHUVWHLQ�RU�,�FRXOG�DUUDQJH�IRU�DQ�DFNQRZOHGJHG�%3$�H[SHUW��6FRWW�%HWWLQ��WR�DGGUHVV��LQ�SHUVRQ�RU�YLD
F\EHUVSDFH��WKHVH�LVVXHV�
�
,Q�FDVH�\RX�KDYH�QRW�VHHQ�WKHP��DWWDFKHG�LV�D�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�����SDJH�FULWLFDO�UHYLHZ�RI�D�1:�(QHUJ\�&RDOLWLRQ
VWXG\��EHORZ�LV�DQ�H[FHOOHQW�RSLQLRQ�SLHFH�E\�D�PHPEHU�RI�WKH�&OHDULQJ�8S�VWDII�
�

&OHDULQJ�8S�>1RYHPEHU������������1R������@
:KHUH�+DYH�$OO�WKH�)DFW�&KHFNHUV�*RQH"
$V�D�MRXUQDOLVW��LW
V�YHU\�GLVKHDUWHQLQJ�WR�VHH�KRZ�VFLHQFH�JHWV�PLVUHSRUWHG�RU�PLVUHSUHVHQWHG��RU�MXVW�SODLQ�PLVVHG�
�ZKHQ�QDWLRQDO�PHGLD�MXPSV�LQ�WR�FRYHU�D�FRPSOLFDWHG�LVVXH��OLNH�WKH�UHDVRQV�IRU�ORZ�VDOPRQ�DQG�VWHHOKHDG�UHWXUQV
WR�WKH�6QDNH�5LYHU��'LVKHDUWHQLQJ�EHFDXVH�WKHVH�DUH�WKH�IRONV�DW�WKH�WRS�RI�P\�ILHOG��DPRQJ�WKH�EHVW�SDLG��ZLWK
DFFHVV�WR�WKH�EHVW�UHVRXUFHV��,�SUHVXPH�7KH�1HZ�<RUN�7LPHV��&11�DQG�+DUSHU
V�0DJD]LQH�DOO�KDYH�IDFW�FKHFNHUV�
%XW�,
YH�EHHQ�OHIW�WR�ZRQGHU�LI�WKH\�ZHUH�DOO�RQ�YDFDWLRQ�LQ�6HSWHPEHU�DQG�2FWREHU�
7KH�WKUHH�PHGLD�JLDQWV�DUH�DPRQJ�D�ODUJHU�JURXS�RI�PDMRU�PHGLD�UHFHQWO\�HQWLFHG�E\�ZKDW�DSSHDUV�WR�EH�D�JURZLQJ
PRPHQWXP�WR�WDNH�RXW�IRXU�PDMRU�GDPV�RQ�WKH�6QDNH�5LYHU��7KH�1HZ�<RUN�7LPHV�DQG�&11�OLQN�WKDW�PRPHQWXP�WR
WKH�ODFN�RI�SUH\�WKDW�HQGDQJHUHG�RUFDV�DUH�IDFLQJ��+DUSHU
V�IRFXVHV�RQ�LVVXHV�ZLWK�KDWFKHULHV�
7KH�WKUHH�VWRULHV�GLVSOD\HG�GLIIHUHQW�NLQGV�RI�HUURUV�WKDW�VRPHKRZ�JRW�SDVW�WKH�IDFW�FKHFNHUV��,W
V�D�FRPSOH[�VWRU\�
WR�EH�VXUH��EXW�DV�D�UHSRUWHU��,�VXEPLW�WKDW�WKHLU�1R����MRE�LV�WR�JHW�WKH�IDFWV�VWUDLJKW�

48 of 73



7KLV�&11�UHSRUW�E\�%LOO�:HLU�DQG�5DFKHO�&ODUNH��WLWOHG��+RZ�D�GHDG�ZKDOH�JDYH�QHZ�OLIH�WR�WKH�GHEDWH�RYHU�GDPV
LQ�WKH�3DFLILF�1RUWKZHVW���ZDV�JHQHUDOO\�EDODQFHG��EXW�WKH�EURDGFDVW�YHUVLRQ�VWDUWV�RXW�ZLWK�D�EDVLF�HUURU���)HZHU
VDOPRQ�DUH�VXUYLYLQJ�WKH�KHURLF�VZLP�IURP�RSHQ�RFHDQ�WR�VSDZQLQJ�VWUHDPV�KXQGUHGV�RI�PLOHV�LQODQG���:HLU�VWDWHV�
$V�12$$�VSRNHVPDQ�0LFKDHO�0LOVWHLQ�WROG�PH���:H�KDYH�JUDSKV�LQ�WKH�%L2S�WKDW�VKRZ�XSVWUHDP�PLJUDWLRQ�KDV
LQFUHDVHG�RYHU�WKH�ODVW�GHFDGH��7KDW�LV�IXQGDPHQWDO���,QGHHG��WKH�%L2S�VKRZV�DGXOW�PLJUDWLRQ�VXUYLYDO�UDWHV�IRU
6QDNH�5LYHU�VSULQJ�VXPPHU�&KLQRRN�WUDYHOLQJ�IURP�%RQQHYLOOH�WR�/RZHU�*UDQLWH�'DP�RYHU�WKH�ODVW�GHFDGH�KDYH
UDQJHG�IURP����WR����SHUFHQW��DQG�IURP����WR����SHUFHQW�IRU�6QDNH�5LYHU�VWHHOKHDG��7KH�SUREOHP�LV�WKDW�QRW
HQRXJK�RI�WKHP�DUH�FRPLQJ�EDFN�IURP�WKH�RFHDQ��OHDYLQJ�VFLHQWLVWV�WR�ORRN�PRUH�FORVHO\�DW�MXYHQLOH�VXUYLYDO�DQG
RFHDQ�FRQGLWLRQV�
%XW�DVLGH�IURP�EDVLF�HUURUV��WKHUH�DUH�H[DPSOHV�RI�JHQHUDO�VWDWHPHQWV�PDGH�DV�LI�WKH\�DUH�ZHOO�NQRZQ�IDFWV��ZLWK
QR�DWWULEXWLRQ��6RPH�RI�WKH�PRVW�HJUHJLRXV�FRPH�IURP�1HZ�<RUN�7LPHV�UHSRUWHU�-LP�5REELQV��LQ�KLV�VWRU\���+RZ
ORQJ�EHIRUH�WKHVH�VDOPRQ�DUH�JRQH"�0D\EH����\HDUV��
:ULWLQJ�DERXW�&ROXPELD�%DVLQ�VDOPRQ�DQG�6QDNH�5LYHU�GDPV��KH�VWDWHV���7KH�PDVVLYH�HIIRUWV�KDYH�QRW�VWHPPHG
WKH�GHFOLQH��GHVSLWH�WKH�IDFW�WKDW�PRUH�WKDQ�����ELOOLRQ�KDV�EHHQ�VSHQW�RQ�UHFRYHU\�RYHU�WKH�ODVW�VHYHUDO�GHFDGHV�
1RZ�PRVW�VFLHQWLVWV�FRPH�GRZQ�RQ�WKH�VLGH�RI�UHPRYLQJ�WKH�GDPV��
:KDW"�:KHUH�GLG�WKDW�FRPH�IURP"�,
YH�EHHQ�FRYHULQJ�WKLV�LVVXH�IRU�DOPRVW�WZR�\HDUV�QRZ��DQG�,�KDYH�QR�LGHD�KRZ
WR�HYHQ�JHW�D�WDOO\�RI�VFLHQWLILF�RSLQLRQ�RQ�GDP�UHPRYDO��7R�EH�VXUH��WKHUH�KDYH�EHHQ�OHWWHUV�VLJQHG�E\�GR]HQV�RI
VFLHQWLVWV�FDOOLQJ�IRU�UHPRYLQJ�WKH�GDPV��%XW�WKDW�GRHVQ
W�HYHQ�EHJLQ�WR�DFFRXQW�IRU�WKH�KXQGUHGV�RI�VFLHQWLVWV
LQYROYHG�LQ�VDOPRQ�UHFRYHU\��QRW�WR�PHQWLRQ�FOLPDWH�FKDQJH�RU�RWKHU�DFDGHPLF�ILHOGV�
,�DVNHG�-RKQ�+DUULVRQ��D�IRUPHU�UHSRUWHU�ZKR�KDV�ZRUNHG�IRU�WKH�1RUWKZHVW�3RZHU�DQG�&RQVHUYDWLRQ�&RXQFLO�IRU
GHFDGHV��DERXW�WKH�VWDWHPHQW��+H
V�QRW�DZDUH�RI�DQ\�VXUYH\V��+H�DOVR�SRLQWHG�WR�WKH�SULRU�VHQWHQFH��WKH�RIW�
UHSHDWHG�ILJXUH�RI�����ELOOLRQ�VSHQW�RYHU�WKH�ODVW����\HDUV��DQG�VWLOO�QR�ILVK�KDYH�EHHQ�GHOLVWHG��%XW�KRZ�GR�ZH�NQRZ
WKDW�WKHVH�HIIRUWV�KDYH�QRW�KHOSHG"�,W
V�TXLWH�SRVVLEOH�WKDW�ZLWKRXW�WKH�DWWHPSW��6QDNH�5LYHU�VRFNH\H�RU�DQRWKHU
&ROXPELD�%DVLQ�UXQ�ZRXOG�EH�H[WLQFW�E\�QRZ��$V�+DUULVRQ�QRWHV���7KH�VHQWHQFH�VHHPV�EDVHG�RQ�WKH�ROG�DQG�WLUHG
DVVXPSWLRQ�WKDW�LI�\RX�VSHQG�D�ORW�RI�PRQH\�RQ�D�SUREOHP�LW�ZLOO�JR�DZD\���,W�WHOOV�QRWKLQJ�RI�WKH�PDMRU�FKDQJHV�RYHU
WKH�ODVW����\HDUV��+DUULVRQ�QRWHV�WKDW��UXQV�DUH�F\FOLFDO�DQG�ZLOO�YDU\�EDVHG�RQ�D�KXJH�QXPEHU�RI�LPSDFWV���7KH
ILJXUH�LV�DOVR�PLVOHDGLQJ�DV�LW�LQFOXGHV�%3$
V�IRUJRQH�UHYHQXH�RI�������ELOOLRQ��DQG�SRZHU�SXUFKDVHV�RI������
ELOOLRQ�
,�ZURWH�WR�ERWK�&11�DQG�WKH�1HZ�<RUN�7LPHV�WR�SRLQW�RXW�WKHVH�VWDWHPHQWV�DQG�DVNHG�WR�VSHDN�ZLWK�WKH�UHSRUWHUV�
6R�IDU��,
YH�JRWWHQ�DQ�DXWRPDWLF�UHSO\�IURP�WKH�7LPHV�VWDWLQJ�WKDW�WKH\�ZLOO�FRUUHFW�DQ\�HUURUV��EXW�WKH\�PD\�QRW�QRWLI\
PH�ZKHQ�WKDW�KDSSHQV�
+HUH
V�DQRWKHU�EODQNHW�VWDWHPHQW�,�SRLQWHG�RXW�LQ�P\�HPDLO�WR�WKH�7LPHV�
�7KH�IRXU�6QDNH�5LYHU�GDPV�DUH�XVHG�SULPDULO\�WR�FUHDWH�UHVHUYRLUV�IRU�WKH�EDUJLQJ�RI�,GDKR
V�ZKHDW�WR�SRUWV��%XW
WKH�GDPV�UDLVH�ZDWHU�WHPSHUDWXUHV�DQG�EORFN�WUDYHO�PLJUDWLRQ�URXWHV��LQFUHDVLQJ�ILVK�PRUWDOLW\��
$FFRUGLQJ�WR�WKH�8�6��$UP\�&RUSV�RI�(QJLQHHUV��WKH�IRXU�GDPV�DUH�PXOWLSOH�XVH�IDFLOLWLHV�WKDW�SURYLGH�QDYLJDWLRQ�
K\GURSRZHU��UHFUHDWLRQ��DQG�ILVK�DQG�ZLOGOLIH�EHQHILWV��,�ZRXOG�YHQWXUH�WKDW�IRU�PRVW�RI�XV�LQ�WKH�3DFLILF�1RUWKZHVW�
WKH�FDSDFLW\�WR�JHQHUDWH�RYHU�������0:��RU�WKH�������D0:�WKDW�WKH�GDPV�SURYLGH�LQ�FOHDQ��UHQHZDEOH�HQHUJ\��LV�DW
OHDVW�D�SULPDU\�IXQFWLRQ��$QG�DFFRUGLQJ�WR�WKH�&RUSV��EHFDXVH�RI�WKHLU�ORFDWLRQ��VL]H�DQG�DELOLW\�WR�KHOS�PHHW�SHDN
SRZHU�ORDGV��WKH�IRXU�GDPV�DUH�DOVR�NH\�WR�NHHSLQJ�WKH�V\VWHP�UHOLDEOH�DQG�KHOS�VXSSRUW�WKH�IOXFWXDWLQJ�HQHUJ\
JHQHUDWHG�E\�ZLQG�
7KH�GDPV�GR�UDLVH�ZDWHU�WHPSHUDWXUHV�DW�FULWLFDO�PLJUDWLRQ�WLPHV��DFFRUGLQJ�WR�(3$�VWXGLHV��EXW�WKH\�FDQ�DOVR�KROG
EDFN�FROGHU�ZDWHU�IRU�ODWHU�XVH��7KH�LVVXH�RI�KRZ�PXFK�GDPV�LQFUHDVH�ZDWHU�WHPSHUDWXUHV�FRPSDUHG�ZLWK�FOLPDWH
FKDQJH�LV�LWV�RZQ�GHEDWH��DQG�RQH�WKDW�ZLOO�OLNHO\�EH�DQDO\]HG�LQ�DQ�XSFRPLQJ�HQYLURQPHQWDO�LPSDFW�VWDWHPHQW�RQ
&ROXPELD�5LYHU�6\VWHP�2SHUDWLRQV�LQ�WKH�DOWHUQDWLYH�WKDW�ORRNV�DW�UHPRYLQJ�WKH�GDPV�
%XW�GR�WKH�GDPV�EORFN�PLJUDWLRQ�URXWHV"�:HEVWHU
V�'LFWLRQDU\�GHILQHV�WKH�YHUE��WR�EORFN��DV��7R�REVWUXFW�VR�DV�WR
SUHYHQW�SDVVDJH�RU�SURJUHVV���RU��7R�FDXVH��DQ\�DFWLYLW\��WR�KDOW�E\�FUHDWLQJ�DQ�REVWUXFWLRQ���7KH�GDPV�VLPSO\�GR
QRW�EORFN�SDVVDJH�RU�ILVK�PLJUDWLRQ��HLWKHU�XSVWUHDP�RU�GRZQVWUHDP��7KLV�LV�D�EDVLF�IDFW�DERXW�WKHVH�GDPV��7KH\�DOO
KDYH�ILVK�ODGGHUV�DQG�MXYHQLOH�PLJUDWLRQ�URXWHV��DQG�WKH�&RUSV�KDV�GRQH�D�ORW�RI�ZRUN�WR�LPSURYH�SDVVDJH�UDWHV��
DQRWKHU�VXEMHFW�WKDW�PHULWV�LWV�RZQ�VWRU\�
7KHVH�EODQNHW�VWDWHPHQWV�PDGH�PH�TXHVWLRQ�RWKHU�HOHPHQWV�RI�WKH�VWRU\��,W�VD\V�WKDW�ZLOG�ILVK�DUH�PXFK�ELJJHU�DQG
PRUH�OLSLG�ULFK��DQG�WKHUHIRUH�PXFK�PRUH�LPSRUWDQW�WR�RUFDV��7KLV�LGHD�KDV�VLQFH�EHHQ�UHSHDWHG�LQ�RWKHU�PHGLD��VR
,�ZDQWHG�WR�JHW�WR�WKH�ERWWRP�RI�LW��,�DOUHDG\�NQHZ�IURP�FRYHULQJ�WKLV�LVVXH�WKDW��DFFRUGLQJ�WR�12$$�)LVKHULHV��DV�IDU
DV�UHVHDUFKHUV�FDQ�GHWHUPLQH��RUFDV�GR�QRW�GLVWLQJXLVK�EHWZHHQ�KDWFKHU\�DQG�ZLOG�ILVK��7KH�RUFD�WDVN�IRUFH��ZKLFK
WKRURXJKO\�H[DPLQHG�WKH�LVVXH��UHFRPPHQGHG�YDVWO\�LQFUHDVLQJ�WKH�SURGXFWLRQ�RI�KDWFKHU\�&KLQRRN�

49 of 73



6R�,�WDONHG�WR�/DXULH�:HLWNDPS��D�UHVHDUFK�ILVKHULHV�ELRORJLVW�DW�12$$
V�1RUWKZHVW�6FLHQFH�&HQWHU��6KH�VDLG
FRPSDUHG�ZLWK�ZLOG�ILVK��KDWFKHU\�ILVK�DUH�DFWXDOO\�PRUH�OLSLG�ULFK�ZKHQ�WKH\�DUH�UHOHDVHG�LQWR�WKH�VWUHDP�DV
MXYHQLOHV�EHFDXVH�WKHLU�GLHWV�KDYH�D�PXFK�KLJKHU�IDW�FRQWHQW���7KHQ�WKH\�JR�WR�WKH�RFHDQ��HDW�WKH�H[DFW�VDPH�WKLQJ�
DQG�LQFUHDVH�WKHLU�ZHLJKW�E\����SHUFHQW�DQG�WKHQ�WKH\
UH�PRUH�RU�OHVV�LGHQWLFDO��LQ�WHUPV�RI�OLSLG�FRQWHQW��VKH�VDLG�
7KHUH
V�QR�LQGLFDWLRQ�WKDW�RUFDV�SUHIHU�ZLOG�ILVK��RU�WKDW�WKH\�EHQHILW�PRUH�E\�HDWLQJ�ZLOG�ILVK��VKH�VDLG�
$�PXFK�ODUJHU�IDFWRU�IRU�RUFDV�LV�WKH�VL]H�RI�WKH�ILVK�WKDW�WKH\
UH�HDWLQJ��DV�LW�WDNHV�HQHUJ\�WR�FDWFK�HLWKHU�RQH��$QG
ZKLOH�KDWFKHU\�ILVK�WHQG�WR�EH��D�OLWWOH�VPDOOHU��WKDQ�ZLOG�ILVK��WKH�ELJJHU�IDFWRU�LV�WKDW��RYHU�WLPH��DOO�VDOPRQ�KDYH
JRWWHQ�VPDOOHU��ZLOG�DQG�KDWFKHU\��&KLQRRN��FKXP��FRKR�DQG�VRFNH\H��7KH�UHDVRQV�IRU�WKHLU�GHFOLQLQJ�VL]H�DUH�QRW
FOHDU��VKH�VDLG��EXW�WKHUH�DUH�WKHRULHV�WKDW�ILVKLQJ�SUHVVXUH��DQG�SRVVLEO\�QHW�VL]H��UHPRYHV�WKH�ODUJHU�VDOPRQ�DQG
OHDYHV�WKH�VPDOOHU�RQHV�WR�UHSURGXFH�
1RZ��OHW
V�ORRN�DW�+DUSHU
V�VWRU\���7KH���������)LVK��7KH�IXWXUH�RI�VDOPRQ�LQ�WKH�3DFLILF�1RUWKZHVW���ZULWWHQ�E\
3DWULFN�6\PPHV��+HUH
V�D�VWRU\�WKDW�UHDGV�PRUH�OLNH�DQ�RSLQLRQ�SLHFH��DOWKRXJK�LW
V�QRW�ODEHOHG�DV�RQH��,W
V�ZULWWHQ�LQ
ILUVW�SHUVRQ��E\�DQ�DXWKRU�ZKR�FOHDUO\�ZDQWV�WR�EODPH�KDWFKHULHV��DORQJ�ZLWK�GDPV��IRU�WKH�FXUUHQW�WURXEOHV�WKDW
6QDNH�5LYHU�VDOPRQ�DQG�VWHHOKHDG�DUH�H[SHULHQFLQJ�
6WLOO��DQ�RSLQLRQ�SLHFH�PXVW�EH�JURXQGHG�LQ�IDFW��RWKHUZLVH��KRZ�FDQ�\RX�PDNH�D�VRXQG�DUJXPHQW"�7KLV�DUWLFOH
LQFOXGHV�VRPH�RXWULJKW�HUURUV�LQ�IDFW��$IWHU�VHHLQJ�D�IHPDOH�VRFNH\H�LQ�WKH�6DOPRQ�5LYHU��KH�VWDWHV���,I�D�PDOH�KDG
PDGH�WKH�VDPH�MRXUQH\��DQG�FRXOG�ILQG�KHU��WKH\�ZRXOG�VHQG�KXQGUHGV�RI�WKRXVDQGV�RI�WLQ\�VPROWV�GRZQVWUHDP�LQ
WKH�VSULQJ���:RZ��/HW
V�ILQG�WKDW�PDJLF�PDOH��6LQFH�D�IHPDOH�VRFNH\H�OD\V�EHWZHHQ�������DQG�������HJJV��WKDW
ZRXOG�EH�TXLWH�D�IHDW�
,W�DOVR�LQFOXGHV�VRPH�PLVOHDGLQJ�HUURUV��HQRXJK�WR�SURPSW�+DUULVRQ�WR�ZULWH�WR�+DUSHU
V�
$V�+DUULVRQ�QRWHV��WKHUH�DUH�PDQ\�JHRJUDSKLFDO�LPSRVVLELOLWLHV�LQ�6\PPHV
�MRXUQH\��%XW�WR�PH��WKH�ELJJHU�LVVXH�LV
WKH���������ILJXUH��D�IDFW�SURPLQHQWO\�GLVSOD\HG�LQ�WKH�KHDGOLQH��DQG�ODWHU�DWWULEXWHG�WR�WKH�1RUWKZHVW�3RZHU�DQG
&RQVHUYDWLRQ�&RXQFLO��%XW�WKH�ILJXUH�GLGQ
W�FRPH�IURP�WKH�&RXQFLO��+DUULVRQ�WUDFNHG�LWV�OLNHO\�VRXUFH�EDFN�WR�D�����
UHSRUW�WR�WKH�&RXQFLO�IURP�DQ�LQGHSHQGHQW�SDQHO�RI�HFRQRPLVWV��4XRWLQJ�WKH�UHSRUW��KH�HPDLOHG���7KH�FRVWV�SHU
KDUYHVWHG�KDWFKHU\�ILVK�UDQJHG�IURP�����IRU�3ULHVW�5DSLGV�IDOO�FKLQRRN�WR�����SHU�6SULQJ�&UHHN�IDOO�FKLQRRN��WR
�����IRU�,UULJRQ�KDWFKHU\�VXPPHU�VWHHOKHDG�WR��������IRU�0F&DOO�VXPPHU�FKLQRRN��WR����������������DW�WKH
/HDYHQZRUWK�KDWFKHU\�FRPSOH[���$V�+DUULVRQ�SRLQWHG�RXW��6\PPHV
���������ILJXUH�DSSHDUV�WR�FRPH�IURP�DQ
HVWLPDWH�PDGH����\HDUV�DJR�DW�D�KDWFKHU\�PRUH�WKDQ�����PLOHV�DZD\�IURP�WKH�ILVK�WKDW�WKH�DXWKRU�MXPSHG�RYHU�D
IHQFH�LQ�,GDKR�WR�VHH��7KH�0F&DOO�KDWFKHU\�LV�DFWXDOO\�PXFK�FORVHU��EXW�ZKR�ZDQWV�WR�UHDG�DERXW�D��������ILVK"
+DUULVRQ�QRWHG�WKDW�WKH�DXWKRU��FOHDUO\�KDG�DQ�DJHQGD�DERXW�KDWFKHULHV�DQG�GDPV���$QG�HYHQ�LI�D�FDOO�IURP�D�IDFW
FKHFNHU�ZRXOG�QRW�KDYH�FKDQJHG�WKH�WRQH�RI�WKH�DUWLFOH�RU�LWV�FRQFOXVLRQV��LW�FRXOG�KDYH�DW�OHDVW�KHOSHG�WR�JHW�VRPH
RI�WKH�IDFWV�ULJKW�
+DUULVRQ�VDLG�KH�KDVQ
W�KHDUG�EDFN�IURP�6\PPHV��EXW�DQ�HGLWRU�GLG�WHOO�KLP�WKDW�WKH�IDFW�FKHFNHU�DVVLJQHG�WR�WKLV
VWRU\�ZDV�QHZ�RQ�WKH�MRE��+H�HQFRXUDJHG�+DUULVRQ�WR�ZULWH�D�OHWWHU�WR�WKH�HGLWRU��ZLWK�D�VWULFW�ZRUG�OLPLW��WR�FRUUHFW
WKH�HUURUV��2K��ZKHUH�GRHV�RQH�EHJLQ"�>.�&��0HKDIIH\@

50 of 73



51 of 73



&ƌŽŵ͗�<ĂƌŝŶ�ZŽĞŵĞƌƐͲ<ůĞǀĞŶ�ф<Z<ΛĐŽŵƉƌĞŚĞŶƐŝǀĞͲŚĞĂůƚŚĐĂƌĞ͘ĐŽŵх�
^ĞŶƚ͗�dŚƵƌƐĚĂǇ͕ �:ĂŶƵĂƌǇ�ϵ͕�ϮϬϮϬ�Ϯ͗Ϭϭ�WD
dŽ͗�<ĞůůǇ�<ŽƌĂů�фŬŬŽƌĂůΛŽƉĂůĐŽ͘ĐŽŵх
^ƵďũĞĐƚ͗�WůĞĂƐĞ�ƌĞƐĐŝŶĚ�ϮͲϮϬϭϵ
�
dŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ͖
�
/�ǁĂƐ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ��ĞĐĞŵďĞƌ��ŽĂƌĚ�ŵĞĞƟŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ƉůĂŶ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ŵŽƌĞ�ŝŶǀŽůǀĞĚ�ŝŶ�KƉĂůĐŽ�ŽǀĞƌ�ƟŵĞ͘��dŚĂŶŬ�ǇŽƵ�ĨŽƌ
ĂůůŽǁŝŶŐ�Ăůů�ŽĨ�ƵƐ�ƚŽ�ƐƉĞĂŬ͘��hŶĨŽƌƚƵŶĂƚĞůǇ�/�ĐĂŶŶŽƚ�ŵĂŬĞ�ƚŚĞ�:ĂŶƵĂƌǇ�Ϯϯ�ŵĞĞƟŶŐ͘��/�Ăŵ�ǁƌŝƟŶŐ�ƚŽ�ǇŽƵ�ŝŶ�ůŝĞƵ�ŽĨ
ŝŶƉƵƚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĚĂǇ͘
�
�Ɛ�Ă�^:��ĐŝƟǌĞŶ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌͬŽǁŶĞƌ�ŽĨ�KW�>�K�/�Ăŵ�ŝŶ�ĨƵůů�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƌŽƵƉ Ɛ͛�ĞǆƉƌĞƐƐĞĚ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ͘��dŚĞ�ŵŽƐƚ
ŝŵƉŽƌƚĂŶƚ�ŽŶĞ�ŝƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ϮͲϮϬϭϵ�ǁĂƐ�ĂĐĐĞƉƚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚŽƵƚ��ŵĞŵďĞƌͬŽǁŶĞƌ�ŝŶƉƵƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĚƵĞ�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ
ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ��ŽŽƉĞƌĂƟǀĞ Ɛ͛�ŵŝƐƐŝŽŶ͘��dŚĞ�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�ǁĂƐ�ŵŽƐƚůǇ�ůĂŶŐƵĂŐĞ�ƐƵďŵŝƩĞĚ�ďǇ��W��ǀŝĂ�Ă�ƉĞƌƐŽŶ
ǁŚŽ�ƌĞŐŝƐƚĞƌƐ�ĂƐ�Ă�ůŽďďǇŝƐƚ͘�KW�>�K�ƐƚĂī�ƚŚĞŶ�ĂĚĚĞĚ�ƐŽŵĞ�ůĂŶŐƵĂŐĞ�ƚŽ�ŵĂŬĞ�ŝƚ�ƐŽŵĞǁŚĂƚ�ƌĞůĂƟǀĞ�ƚŽ�ŽƵƌ��ŽƵŶƚǇ͘�/
ĚŽ�ŶŽƚ�ĨĞĞů�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƉĂƌĂŐƌĂƉŚ�ǁĂƐ�ĞŶŽƵŐŚ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞŇĞĐƚĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚƐ�ŽĨ�ŵĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĨĞůůŽǁ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐͬŽǁŶĞƌƐ͘
�
^ĂŶ�:ƵĂŶ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�ŝƐ�ƵŶƵƐƵĂů�ŝŶ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝƚ�ŚĂƐ�Ă�ůŽƚ�ŽĨ�ĐŝƟǌĞŶƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĐŚŽŽƐĞ�ƚŽ�ůŝǀĞ�ŚĞƌĞ�ďĞĐĂƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ŝƚƐ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ďŽƵŶĚ
ƚĞƌƌĂŝŶ͘��tĞ�ŚĂǀĞ�ŵŽƌĞ�ƐŚŽƌĞ�ůŝŶĞ�ƚŚĂŶ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ĐŽƵŶƟĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ŚĞƌĞ�ĂƌĞ�ŝŶ�ƚƵŶĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŶĂƚƵƌĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƉĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌůǇ
ƚŚĞ�^ŽƵƚŚĞƌŶ�ZĞƐŝĚĞŶƚ�<ŝůůĞƌ�tŚĂůĞƐ͘��ŌĞƌ�Ăůů͕�ŝƚ�ǁĂƐ�ŚĞƌĞ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ƐĂǁ�dĂŚůĞƋƵĂŚ�ĐĂƌƌǇ�ŚĞƌ�ĚĞĂĚ�ďĂďǇ�ŽŶ
ŚĞƌ�ŚĞĂĚ�ĨŽƌ�ϭϳ�ĚĂǇƐ͘��/ƚ�ǁĂƐ�ŚĞƌĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ǁĞ�ǁŝƚŶĞƐƐĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞĐůŝŶĞ�ŽĨ�ůŝƩůĞ�ƐƉƵŶŬǇ�Ϯ�ǇĞĂƌ�ŽůĚ�^ĐĂƌůĞƚ�ǁŚŽ�ǁŝƚŚĞƌĞĚ
ĂǁĂǇ�ŝŶ�ĨƌŽŶƚ�ŽĨ�ŽƵƌ�ĞǇĞƐ͘��/ƚ�ǁĂƐ�ŚĞƌĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŶŽ�ůĞƐƐ�ƚŚĂŶ�ϭϬ�ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂƟŽŶĂů�ŵŽǀŝĞ�ĐƌĞǁƐ�ƐƚĂƟŽŶĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ǁĞĞŬƐ�ƚŽ�Įůŵ
ƚŚĞŵ��ĂŶĚ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�>ǇŶĚĂ�DĂƉĞƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�^ĞĂƩůĞ�dŝŵĞƐ�ǁƌŽƚĞ�ŚĞƌ�ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂƟŽŶĂů�ĂǁĂƌĚ�ǁŝŶŶŝŶŐ�ƐĞƌŝĞƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ
ĞǆƟŶĐƟŽŶ�ǁĞ�ǁŝƚŶĞƐƐ͘��/ƚ�ŝƐ�ŚĞƌĞ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ǁĞ�ĂƌĞ�Ăƚ�ŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ǌĞƌŽ�ŽĨ�ĂŶ�ĞǆƟŶĐƟŽŶ�ŝŶ�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐ͘
�
�Ƶƚ�Ăůů�ƚŚĂƚ�ĨĂŶĨĂƌĞ�ĂƐŝĚĞ͕�ŝƚ�ŝƐ�ŚĞƌĞ�ŝŶ�^ĂŶ�:ƵĂŶ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽƐƚ�ĞƐƚĞĞŵĞĚ�ŵĂƌŝŶĞ�ƐĐŝĞŶƟƐƚƐ�ůŝǀĞ�Žƌ�ǀŝƐŝƚ͘
�dŚĞǇ�ƐƚƵĚǇ�ƚŚĞ�ǁŚĂůĞƐ͕��ƚŚĞŝƌ�ƉƌĞǇ�;��ŚŝŶŽŽŬ͕��ŽŚŽ͕�ĂŶĚ��ŚƵŵ�ƐĂůŵŽŶͿ�ĂŶĚ�ƐĂůŵŽŶ�ŚĂďŝƚĂƚ͘�:ƵǀĞŶŝůĞ�ƐĂůŵŽŶ�ƵƐĞ
ŽƵƌ�ǁĂƚĞƌƐ�ĂƐ�Ă�ŶƵƌƐĞƌǇ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ƚŚĞǇ�ĐĂŶ�ŐƌŽǁ�ůĂƌŐĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƚƌŽŶŐĞƌ�ďĞĨŽƌĞ�ŚĞĂĚŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŽĐĞĂŶ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǆƚ�ϯͲϰ
ǇĞĂƌƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ůŝǀĞƐ͘��dŚĞ�ĐŽůůĞĐƟǀĞ�ŬŶŽǁůĞĚŐĞ�ŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�ĚĞĞƉ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƚ�ǁŚĂƚ�ǁĞ�ůŽǀĞ�ŝƐ�ĞǀĞŶ
ĚĞĞƉĞƌ͘ ��dŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ĚŝĚ�ŶŽƚ�ƚĂƉ�ŝŶƚŽ�ĂŶǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ƚŚŽƵŐŚƚ�ůĞĂĚĞƌƐ�ƚŽ�ƐĞĞ�ŝĨ��W� Ɛ͛�ƉŽƐŝƟŽŶ�ƉĂƉĞƌ�ǁĂƐ�ƐŽŵĞƚŚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ
ǁŽƵůĚ�ĞǀĞƌ�ƌĞŇĞĐƚ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚƐ�ŽĨ�ŝƚƐ�ŽǁŶĞƌƐ͘���W��ĐƌĞĂƚĞƐ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ͕ �KW�>�K�ďƌŝŶŐƐ�ŝƚ�ƚŽ�ƵƐ͘�/ƚ�ŵĂŬĞƐ�ǇŽƵ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ
ĞǆƉĞƌƚƐ͘��zŽƵ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƚĂƉƉĞĚ�ŝŶƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĞƐƚĞĞŵĞĚ�ĮƐŚ�ĂŶĚ�ǁŚĂůĞ�ĞǆƉĞƌƚƐ�ƚŽ�ŵĂŬĞ�Ă�ƚƌƵůǇ�ďĂůĂŶĐĞĚ�ĚĞĐŝƐŝŽŶ�ƚŚĂƚ
ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĐĂŶ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ͘
�
�ĞƐŝĚĞƐ�ĂŶ�ĞǆŚĂƵƐƟǀĞ�ůŝƐƚ�ŽĨ�ǁŚĂůĞ�ĞǆƉĞƌƚƐ�;ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�'ŝůĞƐ�ǁŚŽ�ǁĂƐ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĞĞƟŶŐͿ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�ŚĂƐ��ǇƌŽŶ�ZŽƩ͕
ǁŚŽ�ŝƐ�Ă�ŵĂƌŝŶĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĮƐŚ�ƐĐŝĞŶƟƐƚ�ĂŶĚ�ǁŚŽ�ŚĂƐ�ƐĞƌǀĞĚ�^:��ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�>ĞĂĚ��ŶƟƚǇ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƟŶŐ�ƐĂůŵŽŶŝĚƐ�ĂƐ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ
DĂƌŝŶĞ�ZĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ��ŽŵŵŝƩĞĞ�ŽĨ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�/�Ăŵ�ƚŚĞ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ��ŚĂŝƌ͘ ��dŚĞ�DZ��;ĂŶĚ�ŵĂŶǇ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ŽƌŐĂŶŝǌĂƟŽŶƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ
ŝƐůĂŶĚƐͿ�ŚĂƐ�Ă�ůŽƚ�ŽĨ�ŬŶŽǁůĞĚŐĞ�ĂďŽƵƚ�ƐĂůŵŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ǁĞ�ŚĂǀĞ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚĞĚ�ŵƵĐŚ�ƟŵĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ŝŶ�ƌĞƐƚŽƌĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ
ŚĂďŝƚĂƚ͘�tĞ�ŐĞƚ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƌĂŶƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ǁĞ�ĮŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽƐƚ�ŵĞƌŝƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞŶ�ǁĞ�ŵŽŶŝƚŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƟŽŶ
ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ͘��/�ŬŶŽǁ�;ĂŶĚ�/�ƐƉĞĂŬ�ĂƐ�Ă�ĐŝƟǌĞŶ�ƚŽ�ǇŽƵͿ�ǁŚĂƚ�ŝƚ�ƚĂŬĞƐ�ƚŽ�ĐƌĞĂƚĞ�ŵŽƌĞ�ƐĂůŵŽŶ͘��&ƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĂǇ
ƐŽŵĞŽŶĞ�ŚĂƐ�ĂŶ�ŝĚĞĂ�ƚŽ�ĂĐƚƵĂů�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƟŽŶ�ŝƚ�ƚĂŬĞƐ�ƌŽƵŐŚůǇ�ϭϬ�ǇĞĂƌƐ͘���ĞĐĂƵƐĞ�ŚĂďŝƚĂƚ�ƌĞƐƚŽƌĂƟŽŶ�ƚĂŬĞƐ�ƐŽ
ůŽŶŐ�ǁĞ�ŶĞĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚ�ŝŶ�Ăůů�ĨĂĐĞƚƐ�ŽĨ�ŵĂƌŝŶĞ�ĞŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ǁĞ�ŶĞĞĚ�Ăůů�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƚĂďůĞ
ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ďƌĞĂĐŚŝŶŐ�;ŶŽƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŵŽǀĂůͿ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ϰ�>ŽǁĞƌ�^ŶĂŬĞ�ZŝǀĞƌ��ĂŵƐ͘��tŚŝůĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĮƐŚ�ǁŝůů�ŶĞǀĞƌ�ĐŽŵĞ�ŚĞƌĞ
ŝŶ�ŽƵƌ�ǁĂƚĞƌƐ�ŝƚ�ǁŝůů�ƐƵƉƉůǇ�ƚŚĞ�ůĂƌŐĞƌ�WEt�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ƌĞǀŝƚĂůŝǌĞĚ�ƌĞƐŽƵƌĐĞ�ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽĚƵĐĞ�ĮƐŚ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚůǇ�ŶŽƚ
ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĂŶŐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�^Z<tƐ͘

52 of 73



�
dŚĞ�'ŽǀĞƌŶŽƌ�ĐƌĞĂƚĞĚ�Ă�^Z<t�ƚĂƐŬ�ĨŽƌĐĞ͘��dŚĂƚ�ŵƵůƟ�ĂŐĞŶĐǇ�ŐƌŽƵƉ�ŝƐ�ĂďŽƵƚ�ƚŽ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁ�ƚŚĞ��/^�ƚŚĂƚ�ǁĂƐ�ĨƵŶĚĞĚ�ďǇ
ƚŚĞ�ƐƚĂƚĞ�ƐƉĞĐŝĮĐĂůůǇ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌ�Ăůů�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŶƐ�ŽĨ�ĚĂŵ�ƌĞŵŽǀĂů�ĂŶĚ��W��ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĐĂůůǇ�ƵŶĚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ
ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐ�ďǇ�ŵĂŬŝŶŐ�ǇŽƵ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ��ŽŽƉĞƌĂƟǀĞƐ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĂŐĞŶĚĂ͘�dŚĞƌĞĨŽƌĞ�/�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚ�ǇŽƵ�ƌĞƐĐŝŶĚ�ϮͲϮϬϭϵ͘��/ƚ�ŝƐ
ǀŝƚĂů�ƚŚĂƚ�KW�>�K�ŝƐ�ŶŽƚ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƉĞĐŝĂů�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ǁĂŶƚ�ƚŽ�ƉƌĞƐĞƌǀĞ�Ă�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŚĂƐ�ĨĂŝůĞĚ�ŶĂƚƵƌĞ͘
�
dŚĞ�^ŽƵƚŚĞƌŶ�ZĞƐŝĚĞŶƚ�<ŝůůĞƌ�tŚĂůĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĂŶ�ĂƉĞǆ�ƐƉĞĐŝĞƐ͘��dŚĞǇ�ĂƌĞ�ŽŶ�ƚŽƉ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽŽĚ�ĐŚĂŝŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƌĞ�ĂīĞĐƚĞĚ�ƚŚĞ
ŵŽƐƚ�ďǇ�ŽƵƌ�ƉŽůůƵƚĂŶƚƐ͕�ďǇ�ŽƵƌ�ŶŽŝƐĞ͕�ĂŶĚ�ďǇ�ŽƵƌ�ŽǀĞƌͲĮƐŚŝŶŐ͘���Ɛ�ĮƐŚ�ĞĂƚĞƌƐ�ƚŚĞǇ�ĂƌĞ�ĂīĞĐƚĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽƐƚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ
ĚĞĐůŝŶĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ŵĂŝŶ�ƉƌĞǇ�ĂŶĚ�ŝƚ�ŝƐ�ŽƵƌ�ĐŽůůĞĐƟǀĞ�ĚƵƚǇ�ƚŽ�ĚŽ�ǁŚĂƚĞǀĞƌ�ǁĞ�ĐĂŶ�ƚŽ�Įǆ�ǁŚĂƚ�ǁĞ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĚĞƐƚƌŽǇĞĚ͘��dŚĞ
ĚĂŵƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŽŶůǇ�ŽŶĞ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƐŽůƵƟŽŶ͘��tĞ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƚŽ�ĚŽ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŶŽƚ�ďĞĐĂƵƐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ǁŚĂůĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ďĞĂƵƟĨƵů�ĂŶĚ
ŵĞƐŵĞƌŝǌŝŶŐ�ďƵƚ�ďĞĐĂƵƐĞ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĚĞŵŝƐĞ�ƌĞŇĞĐƚƐ�ǁŚĂƚ�ŝƐ�ŐŽŝŶŐ�ŽŶ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�^ĂůŝƐŚ�^ĞĂ͘�/Ĩ�ŽƵƌ�ŵĂƌŝŶĞ�ĞŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚ�ŝƐ�ŶŽƚ
Ă�ďĂůĂŶĐĞĚ�ĞĐŽƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ǁĞ�ŚƵŵĂŶƐ�ĐĂŶŶŽƚ�ďĞ�ŚĞĂůƚŚǇ�ĞŝƚŚĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�ĞǀĞŶƚƵĂůůǇ�ŽƵƌ�ŬŝĚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŐƌĂŶĚŬŝĚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ůĞŌ�ƚŽ�ĚĞĂů
ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ŚŽƌƌŝĮĐ�ĐŽŶƐĞƋƵĞŶĐĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŽĚĂǇ Ɛ͛�ĚĞĐŝƐŝŽŶƐ͘���ŐĂŝŶ͕�ƉůĞĂƐĞ�ƌĞƐĐŝŶĚ�ϮͲϮϬϭϵ�ĂŶĚ�ĂůůŽǁ�ƚŚĞ�dĂƐŬ�ĨŽƌĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ
^ƚĂƚĞ�ƚŽ�ŐŽ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞŵŽĐƌĂƟĐ�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐ͘
�
�
�
ZĞƐƉĞĐƞƵůůǇ͕
�
�
<ĂƌŝŶ�ZŽĞŵĞƌƐͲ<ůĞǀĞŶ
�Ăůů�Žƌ�ƚĞǆƚ͗�ϮϱϯͲϴϮϬͲϯϯϵϳ
&ƌŝĚĂǇ�,ĂƌďŽƌ
�
�

53 of 73



,ŝ�<ƌŝƐƚĂ͕

/�ŚĂǀĞ�ƌĞĂĚ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ƉĂĐŬĞƚͲͲƚŚĂŶŬ�ǇŽƵ͘
/�ǁĂƐ�ŐůĂĚ�ƚŽ�ŚĞĂƌ�ĞůƐĞǁŚĞƌĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƐŽůƵƟŽŶ�ŝƐ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ƌĞĞǆĂŵŝŶĞĚ͘�

/�ǁŝƐŚ�/�ĐŽƵůĚ�ĂƩĞŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�KƉĂůĐŽ�ďŽĂƌĚ�ŵĞĞƟŶŐ͕�ďƵƚ�ůŝŬĞ�ŵŽƐƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŶŽŶͲĞĐŽŶŽŵŝĐͲĞůŝƚĞ�KƉĂůĐŽ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ͕�/
ŚĂǀĞ�ƚŽ�ǁŽƌŬ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ǁĞĞŬ͘

DŽǀŝŶŐ�ďŽĂƌĚ�ŵĞĞƟŶŐƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ǁĞĞŬĞŶĚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĂŶ�ĞǆĐĞůůĞŶƚ�ƐŚŽǁ�ŽĨ�ŐŽŽĚ�ĨĂŝƚŚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ďŽĂƌĚ�ĂĐƚƵĂůůǇ�ǁĂŶƚƐ
ŝŶƉƵƚ�ĨƌŽŵ�KƉĂůĐŽ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ͘�hŶƟů�ƚŚĞŶ�/�ŐƵĞƐƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƟƌĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƌŝĐŚ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĂƩĞŶĚŝŶŐ͘�

dŚĂŶŬƐ͕�
ŬĞĂƌĂ

ͲͲͲͲͲ�ZĞƉůǇ�ŵĞƐƐĂŐĞ�ͲͲͲͲͲ
&ƌŽŵ͗�Η<ƌŝƐƚĂ��ŽƵĐŚĞǇΗ�фŬďŽƵĐŚĞǇΛŽƉĂůĐŽ͘ĐŽŵх
dŽ͗�ΗŬĞĂƌĂ�ĂΗ�фŬĞĂƌĂ͘ĂΛŽƵƚůŽŽŬ͘ĐŽŵх
^ƵďũĞĐƚ͗�WůĞĂƐĞ�ŚĞůƉ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƚ�ŽƌĐĂƐ
�ĂƚĞ͗�DŽŶ͕��ĞĐ�Ϯϯ͕�ϮϬϭϵ�ϴ͗ϯϰ��D

dŚĂŶŬ�ǇŽƵ�Ͳ�ǁĞ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ǇŽƵƌ�ůĞƩĞƌ͘ ��tĞ�ƐŚĂƌĞ�ǇŽƵƌ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŚĞĂůƚŚ�ŽĨ�ŽƵƌ�ƐĞĂ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ
ǁŚĂůĞƐ͘
�
WůĞĂƐĞ�ďĞ�ƐƵƌĞ�ƚŽ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁ�ƚŚĞ�ůĂƚĞƐƚ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ƌĞŐĂƌĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƚŽƉŝĐ�ŝŶ�ŽƵƌ��ĞĐĞŵďĞƌ��ŽĂƌĚ�WĂĐŬĞƚ͘�WĂŐĞƐ
ϮϴͲϰϲ�ŽƵƚůŝŶĞƐ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞƐĞĂƌĐŚ�ƚŚĞ�ďŽĂƌĚ�ƵƐĞĚ͘�ŚƩƉƐ͗ͬͬǁǁǁ͘ŽƉĂůĐŽ͘ĐŽŵͬǁƉͲ
ĐŽŶƚĞŶƚͬƵƉůŽĂĚƐͬϮϬϭϵͬϭϮͬ�ĞĐĞŵďĞƌͲϮϬϭϵͲ�ŽĂƌĚͲDĂƚĞƌŝĂůƐͺ&/E�>Ͳϭ͘ƉĚĨ
�
KƵƌ�ďŽĂƌĚ�ŵĞĞƟŶŐƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƚǇƉŝĐĂůůǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŚŝƌĚ�dŚƵƌƐĚĂǇ�ŽĨ�ĞĂĐŚ�ŵŽŶƚŚ͘�dŚĞǇ�ĂƌĞ�ƉƵďůŝĐ�ŵĞĞƟŶŐƐ�ǁŚĞƌĞ
ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚ�ŝƐ�ǁĞůĐŽŵĞ͘��ĂĐŚ�ŵŽŶƚŚ�ǁĞ�ƉƵďůŝƐŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĂŐĞŶĚĂ�ĂŶĚ�ďŽĂƌĚ�ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂůƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�DŽŶĚĂǇ
ƉƌŝŽƌ�ƚŽ�ŵĞĞƟŶŐ͘�tĞ�ĂůǁĂǇƐ�ƐƚƌŽŶŐůǇ�ĞŶĐŽƵƌĂŐĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ƉĂƌƟĐŝƉĂƟŽŶ͘�WůĞĂƐĞ�ĐŚĞĐŬ�ŽƵƌ�ĐĂůĞŶĚĂƌ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ
ďŽĂƌĚ�ŵĞĞƟŶŐƐ�ƐĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƚĂǇ�ƚƵŶĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁ�ƵƉ�ŵĞĞƟŶŐ�ƌĞŐĂƌĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚŝƐ
ƚŽƉŝĐ͘�ŚƩƉƐ͗ͬͬǁǁǁ͘ŽƉĂůĐŽ͘ĐŽŵͬĐĂůĞŶĚĂƌͬ
�
dŚĂŶŬ�ǇŽƵ͕
<ƌŝƐƚĂ��ŽƵĐŚĞǇ

&ƌŽŵ͗�ŬĞĂƌĂ�Ă�фŬĞĂƌĂ͘ĂΛŽƵƚůŽŽŬ͘ĐŽŵх
^ĞŶƚ͗�^ƵŶĚĂǇ͕ ��ĞĐĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϮ͕�ϮϬϭϵ�ϭϬ͗ϯϵ��D
dŽ͗��ŽŶƚĂĐƚdŚĞ�ŽĂƌĚ�ф�ŽŶƚĂĐƚdŚĞ�ŽĂƌĚΛŽƉĂůĐŽ͘ĐŽŵх
^ƵďũĞĐƚ͗�WůĞĂƐĞ�ŚĞůƉ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƚ�ŽƌĐĂƐ

/�Ăŵ�ǁƌŝƟŶŐ�ƚŽ�ƐƚƌŽŶŐůǇ�ƵƌŐĞ�ƚŚĞ�KW�>�K�ďŽĂƌĚ�ƚŽ�ƌĞƐĐŝŶĚ�ZĞƐŽůƵƟŽŶ�ϮͲϮϬϭϵ�ŝŶ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ŽĨ�ŬĞĞƉŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�>ŽǁĞƌ
^ŶĂŬĞ�ZŝǀĞƌ��ĂŵƐ͘

54 of 73



�Ɛ�Ă�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�KW�>�K͕�/�Ăŵ�ƚƌŽƵďůĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ǇŽƵ�ĂĚŽƉƚĞĚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƐŽůƵƟŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚŽƵƚ�ŝŶƉƵƚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ǇŽƵƌ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ͕�ĂŶĚ
ĂƉƉĂƌĞŶƚůǇ�ĨĂŝůĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚĂŬĞ�ŝŶƚŽ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƌĞŵŽǀŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĂŵƐ�ŝƐ�ƚŚĞ�ůĂƐƚ͕�ďĞƐƚ�ƐŚŽƚ�ǁĞ�ŚĂǀĞ�Ăƚ�ƐĂǀŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ
ƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƚ�ŽƌĐĂƐ͘�

/�ĂƉƉƌĞĐŝĂƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ĐůĞĂŶ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ͕ �ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞƐ�ŚǇĚƌŽĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ͘��Ƶƚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĐĂƐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƐƚ�ŽĨ
ŬĞĞƉŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ĚĂŵƐ�ƚŚĞƌĞďǇ�ŬŝůůŝŶŐ�ƐĂůŵŽŶ�ŝƐ�ũƵƐƚ�ƚŽŽ�ŐƌĞĂƚ͘�

/�ĂůƐŽ�ĂƉƉƌĞĐŝĂƚĞ�ǇŽƵƌ�ƐƚĂīΖƐ�ĞǆƉĞƌƟƐĞ͕�ďƵƚ�ĚŽŶΖƚ�ďĞůŝĞǀĞ�ŝƚ�ƐƵƌƉĂƐƐĞƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ϱϱ�ƐĐŝĞŶƟƐƚƐ�ǁŚŽ�ǁƌŽƚĞ�ŝŶ�ĨĂǀŽƌ
ŽĨ�ƌĞŵŽǀŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĂŵƐ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƚ�ǁŝůĚůŝĨĞ�/��ƚŚĞ�ůĞƩĞƌ�ĂƩĂĐŚĞĚ�ŚĞƌĞ͘�

WůĞĂƐĞ�ǀŽƚĞ�ƚŽ�ƌĞƐĐŝŶĚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƐŽůƵƟŽŶ͘�

dŚĂŶŬ�ǇŽƵ͕�
<ĞĂƌĂ��ǆĞůƌŽĚ�

55 of 73



56 of 73



,W�DSSHDUV�23$/&2�PLJKW�KDYH�EHHQ�KDVW\�LQ�SDVVLQJ�D�UHVROXWLRQ��ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŽƉƉŽƐĞƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŵŽǀĂů�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ
>^Z�Ɛ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƉƉŽƐĞƐ�ĨƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ƐƚƵĚŝĞƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŝƐƐƵĞ͕�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞŵ�ΗĂ�ǁĂƐƚĞĨƵů�ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚĂǆƉĂǇĞƌ�ŵŽŶĞǇ͘Η��

tŚǇ�ǁŽƵůĚŶΖƚ�ǇŽƵ�ǁŝƐŚ�ƚŽ�ŚĞĂƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƐƵůƚƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��/^�ďĞĨŽƌĞ�ĂĐƟŶŐ͍

/ƚ�ƐƵŐŐĞƐƚƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ďǇ�ƚƌƵŶĐĂƟŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐ�KW�>�K�ŚĂƐ�ƐŽŵĞƚŚŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ŚŝĚĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�ŝƚƐ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ͘��dŚŝƐ�ƐŽƌƚ�ŽĨ
ƚŚŝŶŐ�ŶĞĞĚƐ�ǀĞƫŶŐ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ůĞǀĞů͘

>ĞƚΖƐ�ďĞ�ŽƉĞŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƟǀĞ͘��tĞ�ĂƌĞ�Ă��ŽͲŽƉ͕�ŶŽƚ�Ă�ƉƌŝǀĂƚĞ�ĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƟŽŶ͘��zŽƵ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ĂůǁĂǇƐ�ƌĞĨĞƌ
ƚŽ�ǇŽƵƌ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂďŽƵƚ�ŵĂũŽƌ�ƉŽůŝĐŝĞƐ͘

dŚĂŶŬƐ�ĨŽƌ�ǇŽƵƌ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĂƟŽŶ͕

<ŝƌŵĂŶ�dĂǇůŽƌ
>ŽƉĞǌ�/ƐůĂŶĚ

57 of 73



�ĞĂƌ��ŽĂƌĚ�DĞŵďĞƌƐ͗

/�Ăŵ�ǁƌŝƟŶŐ�ƚŽ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�KW�>�K��ŽĂƌĚ�ƌĞƐĐŝŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ϮͲϮϬϭϵ�ƌĞƐŽůƵƟŽŶ�ƌĞŐĂƌĚŝŶŐ��ƌĞŵŽǀĂů�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ
>ŽǁĞƌ�^ŶĂŬĞ�ZŝǀĞƌ�ĚĂŵƐ�;>^Z�ƐͿ͘�/�ĚŽ�ŶŽƚ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĂŶǇ�ƌĞƐŽůƵƟŽŶ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŽƉƉŽƐĞƐ�ƌĞŵŽǀŝŶŐ�Žƌ�ďƌĞĂĐŚŝŶŐ
ƚŚĞ�>^Z�Ɛ͕�ǁŚĞŶ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞ�ƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƌĞůŝĂďůĞ�ĂŶĚ�ůŽǁͲĐŽƐƚ�ůŽǁͲĐĂƌďŽŶ�ƌĞŶĞǁĂďůĞ
ƉŽǁĞƌ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĚŽŶΖƚ�ŚĂƌŵ�ĮƐŚ͘��

dŚĞ�KW�>�K��ŽĂƌĚ�ĚŝĚ�ŶŽƚ�ĂĚŚĞƌĞ�ƚŽ�ŝƚƐ�ŽǁŶ�ƉƌŝŶĐŝƉůĞƐ�ŽĨ�ĞŶŐĂŐŝŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐŚŝƉ�ďĞĨŽƌĞ�ŵĂŬŝŶŐ
ƐƵĐŚ�ĂŶ�ŝŵƉŽƌƚĂŶƚ�ĐŽŶƚƌŽǀĞƌƐŝĂů�ĚĞĐŝƐŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ǀĞƌǇ�ŵƵĐŚ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ�ŵĞ͘��tĞ�ĂƌĞ�Ă�ŵĞŵďĞƌ
ŽƌŐĂŶŝǌĂƟŽŶ͘

dŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ĚŝĚ�ŶŽƚ�ŶĞĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŐŽ�ŽƵƚ�ŽĨ�ŝƚƐ�ǁĂǇ�ƚŽ�ĂĚŽƉƚ�ƐƵĐŚ�Ă�ƌĞƐŽůƵƟŽŶ�Ăƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƟŵĞ͘��tŚĂƚ�ŝƐ�ƚŚĞ
ƌĞĂƐŽŶŝŶŐ�ďĞŚŝŶĚ�ƐƵĐŚ�Ă�ƌƵƐŚĞĚ�ĚĞĐŝƐŝŽŶ͕��ĞƐƉĞĐŝĂůůǇ�ǁŚŝůĞ�ĐƌƵĐŝĂů�ĨĞĚĞƌĂů�ĂŶĚ�t��ƐƚĂƚĞ�ƐƚƵĚŝĞƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ
>^Z�Ɛ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚƐ�ŽŶ�ƐĂůŵŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƌĐĂ�ĂƌĞ�ĨƵŶĚĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƵŶĚĞƌǁĂǇ͍

/ƚ�ĚŽĞƐ�ŶŽƚ�ĂƉƉĞĂƌ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ĞŶŐĂŐĞĚ�ŝŶ�ůŝƐƚĞŶŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ĞǆƉĞƌƚƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĮĞůĚ�ŽĨ�ƐĂůŵŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƌĐĂ�ǁŚĂůĞƐ͕
ĞǀĞŶ�ƚŚŽƵŐŚ�ŵĂŶǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ĞǆƉĞƌƚƐ�ƌĞƐŝĚĞ�ŚĞƌĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�^ĂŶ�:ƵĂŶƐ͘��tŚǇ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ĞǆƉĞƌƚƐ�ŶŽƚ
ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĞĚ�ďĞĨŽƌĞ�ƐƵĐŚ�ĂŶ�ŝŵƉŽƌƚĂŶƚ�ƌĞƐŽůƵƟŽŶ�ǁĂƐ�ǀŽƚĞĚ�ŽŶ͍��

/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ŝŶ�ĐŽƐƚͲĞīĞĐƟǀĞ͕�ůŽǁͲĐĂƌďŽŶ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞƐ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ƌĞƉůĂĐĞ�ĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐŝƚǇ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�>^Z�Ɛ
ǁŝƚŚŽƵƚ�ƚŚƌĞĂƚĞŶŝŶŐ�ƐƵƌǀŝǀĂů�ŽĨ�ƐĂůŵŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƌĐĂƐ͕�ǇĞƚ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ƐĞĞŵƐ�ƚŽ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ůŝƩůĞ�ĚŝƐĐƵƐƐŝŽŶ�Žƌ
ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ͘��tŚǇ�ĂƌĞ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ŶŽƚ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ͍

/�Ăŵ�ĂůƐŽ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�KW�>�K�ďŽĂƌĚ�ŚĂƐ�ƚĂŬĞŶ�ĂŶ�ƵŶŶĞĐĞƐƐĂƌŝůǇ�ĂŶƚĂŐŽŶŝƐƟĐ�ƉŽƐŝƟŽŶ�ĂŐĂŝŶƐƚ�ƚŚĞ
^ĂŶ�:ƵĂŶ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ǁŚŽ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�Ă�ƐƚĂŬĞŚŽůĚĞƌ�ƐƚƵĚǇ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ĂŶĚ�ĞĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ
>^Z�Ɛ͘���dŚĞ�^ŽƵƚŚĞƌŶ�ZĞƐŝĚĞŶƚ�KƌĐĂ�dĂƐŬ�&ŽƌĐĞ�ĂŶĚ��'ŽǀĞƌŶŽƌ�/ŶƐůĞĞ�ďŽƚŚ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚƵĚǇ͘��tŚǇ�ĚŝĚ
ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ƚĂŬĞ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĂŶƚĂŐŽŶŝƐƟĐ�ƉŽƐŝƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƌƵƐŚ�ƚŽ�ƉĂƐƐ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƐŽůƵƟŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚŽƵƚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ŝŶƉƵƚ͍

/Ŷ�ƐƵŵŵĂƌǇ͕ �/�Ăŵ�ĞǆƚƌĞŵĞůǇ�ĚŝƐĂƉƉŽŝŶƚĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƵƉƐĞƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�KW�>�K��ŽĂƌĚ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƐĞĞŵƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĂĐƟŶŐ
ůŝŬĞ�Ă�ĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ�ƉƌŝǀĂƚĞ�ĞŶƟƚǇ�ƌĂƚŚĞƌ�ƚŚĞŶ�Ă�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ŽƌŐĂŶŝǌĂƟŽŶ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŐŽŽĚ�ŽĨ�ŽƵƌ�ĐŽƵŶƚǇ͘

WůĞĂƐĞ�ƌĞƐĐŝŶĚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƐŽůƵƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƉƉŽŝŶƚ�Ă�ĐŽŵŵŝƩĞĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƐƚĂŬĞŚŽůĚĞƌƐ�ƚŽ�ƐƚƵĚǇ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŝƐƐƵĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁ
ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŶǇ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�Ăƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƟŵĞ͘

^ŝŶĐĞƌĞůǇ͕
>ŝǌ�^ĐƌĂŶƚŽŶ
ϰϱϱϵ��ĞŶƚĞƌ�ZŽĂĚ
>ŽƉĞǌ�/ƐůĂŶĚ͕�t��ϵϴϮϲϭ
ϯϲϬͲϲϮϮͲϵϮϵϵ�Žƌ�ϰϲϴͲϰϯϴϯ

58 of 73



59 of 73



*RRG�PRUQLQJ��2SDOFR

2XU�HQGDQJHUHG�VDOPRQ�DQG�RUFD�ZKDOHV�QHHG�RXU�¬VXSSRUW�VR�,
P�DVNLQJ�WKH
23$/&2�ERDUG�WR�UHVFLQG�\RXU��������UHVROXWLRQ�RSSRVLQJ�GDP�UHPRYDO�¬¬:H�GR�QRW
ZDQW�RXU�FROOHFWLYH�YRLFHV�RQ�D�UHVROXWLRQ�WKDW�RSSRVHV�UHPRYLQJ�RU�EUHDFKLQJ�WKH
/65'V��ZKHQ�WKHUH�FRXOG�EH�DOWHUQDWLYH�VRXUFHV�IRU�UHOLDEOH�DQG�ORZ�FRVW�ORZ�
FDUERQ�UHQHZDEOH�SRZHU�WKDW�GRQ
W�KDUP�ILVK�

7KDQN�\RX�IRU�OLVWHQLQJ�

/RYH�DQG�EOHVVLQJV�
�,�VLJQ�DOO�HPDLO�WKLV�ZD\��

/RUQD
¬

:HOFRPH�HDFK�PRPHQW�DV�WKRXJK�\RX�KDG�FKRVHQ�LW����(FNKDUW�7ROOH

/RUQD�5HHVH
/RSH]�,VODQG��:$������

60 of 73



�
�
&ƌŽŵ͗�ŶŽͲƌĞƉůǇсŽƉĂůĐŽ͘ĐŽŵΛŵĂŝů͘ǁƉĞŶŐŝŶĞ͘ĐŽŵ�фŶŽͲƌĞƉůǇсŽƉĂůĐŽ͘ĐŽŵΛŵĂŝů͘ǁƉĞŶŐŝŶĞ͘ĐŽŵх�KŶ��ĞŚĂůĨ�KĨ�ŶŽͲ
ƌĞƉůǇΛŽƉĂůĐŽ͘ĐŽŵ
^ĞŶƚ͗�DŽŶĚĂǇ͕ �:ĂŶƵĂƌǇ�ϲ͕�ϮϬϮϬ�ϭ͗ϰϱ�WD
dŽ͗�<ĞůůǇ�<ŽƌĂů�фŬŬŽƌĂůΛŽƉĂůĐŽ͘ĐŽŵх
^ƵďũĞĐƚ͗�EĞǁ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚ�ĨƌŽŵ�DĂŝŶ��ŽŶƚĂĐƚ�&Žƌŵ
�

5HFLSLHQW

� &RQWDFW�WKH�%RDUG

1DPH

� 0DU\�*URSS

(PDLO

� PDU\JURSS��#JPDLO�FRP

3KRQH

� ��������������

&RPPHQW

�

'HDU�PHPEHUV�RI�WKH�23$/&2�%RDUG�
,�DP�ZULWLQJ�WR�H[SUHVV�P\�FRQFHUQ�DERXW�5HVROXWLRQ���������ZKLFK�VWDWHV�23$/&2
V�RSSRVLWLRQ�WR�UHPRYDO�RI�WKH
/RZHU�6QDNH�5LYHU�GDPV��)LUVW��,�ZRXOG�OLNH�WR�H[SUHVV�P\�WKDQNV�DQG�DSSUHFLDWLRQ�WR�WKH�23$/&2�RUJDQL]DWLRQ�IRU
IRUZDUG�WKLQNLQJ�DQG�DJJUHVVLYH�SODQQLQJ�WR�DGGUHVV�WKH�QHHG�WR�UHGXFH�RXU�FDUERQ�IRRWSULQW�LQ�HOHFWULFLW\�SURGXFWLRQ��,
DFNQRZOHGJH�WKDW�K\GUR�SRZHU�KDV�D�YHU\�ORZ�FDUERQ�IRRWSULQW��FRPSDUHG�WR�VRPH�RWKHU�HOHFWULFLW\�SURGXFLQJ�RSWLRQV�
+RZHYHU��,�IHHO�WKDW�LQ�SDVVLQJ�WKLV�UHVROXWLRQ�RSSRVLQJ�EUHDFKLQJ�RU�UHPRYDO�RI�WKH�/65'V�GRHV�QRW�UHSUHVHQW�WKH
RSLQLRQ�RI�PDQ\�RI�\RXU�FRQVWLWXHQWV��,QVWHDG��WKH�%RDUG�VHHPV�WR�KDYH�DSSURYHG�D�UHVROXWLRQ�ZKLFK�ZDV�KDQGHG�WR
WKHP�E\�:5(&$��ZLWKRXW�DVNLQJ�IRU�LQSXW�RQ�WKLV�YHU\�VHQVLWLYH�ORFDO�LVVXH��7KH�5HVROXWLRQ�LQFOXGHV�FODLPV�WKDW�WKH
VDOPRQ�SRSXODWLRQV�DUH�WKULYLQJ��DQG�WKDW�WKH�GDPV�FDQ�UHPDLQ��DQG�WKDW�ZH�FDQ�KDYH�KHDOWK\�ILVK�DQG�RUFD�ZKDOH
SRSXODWLRQV��6WXGLHV�H[LVW�WR�VXSSRUW�WKHVH�ILQGLQJV��EXW�\RX�FDQ�DOVR�ILQG�YHULILDEOH�VWXGLHV�DQG�VWDWHPHQWV�IURP
VFLHQWLVWV�LQ�WKH�ILHOG�ZKLFK�ZRXOG�FRQWUDGLFW�WKDW�SRVLWLYH�RXWORRN�
*RYHUQRU�,QVOHH�LV�FXUUHQWO\�FRQGXFWLQJ�D�VWDNHKROGHU�VWXG\�RQ�WKH�IXWXUH�RI�WKH�/65'V��$�QHZ�(,6�LV�RXW�HDUO\�WKLV
\HDU��7KH�23$/&2�ERDUG�VKRXOG�QRW�KDYH�ZHLJKHG�LQ�RQ�WKLV�LVVXH�XQWLO�WKH�UHVXOWV�RI�WKLV�SURFHVV�DUH�RQ�WKH�WDEOH��%\
VLJQLQJ�LQ�DJUHHPHQW�ZLWK�:5(&$��\RX�JLYH�WKHP�SHUPLVVLRQ�WR�XV�RXU�&RRSHUDWLYH
V�QDPH�DQG�JHRJUDSKLFDO�ORFDWLRQ
LQ�WKHLU�VXSSRUW�RI�WKH�GDPV�LQ�OREE\LQJ�HIIRUWV�WR�NHHS�WKH�GDPV�LQ�SODFH��
,�DVN�WKDW�WKH�%RDUG�UHVFLQG�WKLV�UHVROXWLRQ��,I�\RX�GRXEW�WKH�VXSSRUW�RI�\RXU�FRRSHUDWLYH�PHPEHUVKLS�RQ�WKLV�LVVXH�
SOHDVH�WDNH�LW�XSRQ�\RXUVHOYHV�WR�SROO�WKH�PHPEHUV��RU�DW�OHDVW�WR�KROG�D�SXEOLF�IRUXP�WR�WDNH�LQSXW�DQG�GLVFXVVLRQ��
7KDQN�\RX�
0DU\�*URSS

�

61 of 73



1 
 

13 January 2020 

Sent via email to kkoral@opalco.com  

RE: OPALCO Board of Directors Resolution 2-2019 Supporting the Federal Columbia River Power System, 

Recognizing its role in Environmental Stewardship, and Opposing Removal of the Lower Snake River 

Dams 

 

Dear OPALCO Board Members: 

According to OPALCO’s December 23rd press release, “The Board agreed to put the brakes on Resolution 

2-2019 until they can revisit the issues with greater collaboration from the membership.” Using the phrase 

“putting the brakes on” is meaningless as long as the Board allows the resolution to stand. We again ask 

you to formally rescind this resolution at the January 23rd Board meeting.  

There are at least two (2) compelling reasons the board needs to immediately rescind:  

• Violation of the Cooperative Principle of Democratic Member Control 

• Lack of due diligence / allowing influence by lobbyists with motives contrary to member interests 

 

1. Violation of the Cooperative Principle of Democratic Member Control 

Democratic Member Control is one of seven (7) Cooperative Principles that OPALCO ascribes to in its 

values statement. According to the International Cooperative Alliance (ICA), this principle is described as 

“Cooperatives are democratic organizations controlled by their Members, who actively participate in 

setting policies and making decisions. The elected representatives are accountable to the membership.” 

After the December 19th OPALCO meeting, Sandi was told by an OPALCO staff member that Democratic 

Member Control was NOT violated with the passing of this resolution because OPALCO believes that 

democratic control simply means that members elect directors. 

If this statement is accurate, and OPALCO staff and Board believe that elections are the limit of members’ 

democratic power, then it’s time that Staff, the Board (and the members!) become educated on the true 

meaning of the principles and values of a cooperative. To aid that education, we attach Guidance Notes 

to the Co-Operative Principles by the International Cooperative Alliance (ICA). Please refer to page 15 in 

the Guidance Notes (Enclosure #1 in attachments to this letter), which includes the following: 

“Democracy is also not just linked to voting in elections and general assemblies… In democratic systems 
there is a spectrum of democratic engagement: from representative democracy through the election of 
representatives every few years, through deliberative democracy on major issues, to participatory 
democracy with continuous engagement of members in day to day decision-making. Co-operatives tend 
towards the deliberative and participatory end of the democratic spectrum. Members should be engaged 
in proposing and approving key strategic policy decisions and regularly, in general assembly, holding 
elected representatives on boards or committees and senior executives to account… The defining 
characteristic of a democratic organization is that its members are the ultimate authority. This sentence 
emphasizes that members ultimately control their co-operative. It also stresses that they do so actively in 
a democratic manner, through having the right to vote on key strategic policy decisions and to participate 
in electing the representatives who control their co-operative’s day-to-day business activities.”  

62 of 73

mailto:kkoral@opalco.com
https://www.ica.coop/en


2 
 

Clearly, Resolution 2-2019 rises to the level of a key strategic policy decision and its unilateral adoption 

by the Board violates the Cooperative Principle of Democratic Member Control. Just for this reason alone, 

2-2019 needs to be rescinded immediately, at the January 23rd Board meeting. 

2. Lack of due diligence / Allowing influence by lobbyists with motives contrary to our interests 

In August 2019, the lobbying group Washington Rural Electric Cooperative Association (WRECA) asked its 
member utilities to pass resolutions opposing the removal of the Lower Snake River Dams (LSRDs). WRECA 
provided a sample resolution to OPALCO, which staff then distributed at the August Board meeting (Staff 
did not include the sample resolution in the August meeting materials for the Board’s advance review.) 
Though a formal vote wasn’t taken at the August meeting, it’s clear from the minutes that the Board made 
the decision to adopt the resolution in principle at that time because staff was merely directed to move 
forward with revising it, presumably to add language reflecting our unique position in the Salish Sea. 
Neither staff nor board members were asked to find more data, seek out experts or further examine 
statements made in WRECA’s proposed resolution. The ultimate resolution that the Board adopted in 
September was ≈95% boilerplate language included in WRECA in sample resolutions. (See Enclosure #2, 
in attachments to this letter, of Resolution 2-2019 with yellow highlights indicating copied text from 
sample resolutions.) 

Through our subsequent research, we’ve been able draw clear proof that OPALCO’s passing of this 

resolution was part of an orchestrated industry strategy to keep the Lower Snake River Dams (LSRDs) at 

any cost or consequence amidst scientific evidence of the dams’ impact on endangered species. Further, 

it was purposefully sequenced to weigh in on the February 2020 Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) 

before it’s released. The goal is to divert attention away from any evidence that supports removing the 

LSRDs. By and large, the lobbyists and their chief supporters are seeking to protect the non-hydro benefits 

of the LSRDs, and some groups have gone so far as made attempts to shut the case once-and-for-all by 

advocating for removing the affected endangered fish from protection of the Endangered Species Act 

(ESA). Here are some telling actions, beginning after May 2016 when a Federal judge for the fifth time 

over 20 years rejected the government’s plan to protect salmon in the Columbia River Basin: 

• November 2016 Irrigators in Eastern WA ask president-elect Trump to invoke the God Squad to 
exempt the endangered salmon. The God Squad is a little-used provision of the Endangered 
Species Act, allowing the heads of several federal agencies to decide to lift ESA protections. 

• 2017 NW River Partners (NWRP) present the God Squad option at a WRECA conference 

• 2018 NW River Partners/WRECA/PNGC lobby for HR 3144 – Branded by some as the ‘Dam 
Protection Bill’ and others as the ‘Salmon Extinction Act’, this bill introduced by Cathy McMorris 
Rogers aimed to overturn two U.S. District court decisions that ruled federal hydropower 
management plans were illegal for violating the ESA and risking the extinction of wild salmon with 
their operations.  

• June 2019 NW River Partners Presentation at WRECA annual meeting lays out a “Hearts and 
Minds” campaign to sway opinion in favor of keeping the dams in time for public comment on the 
EIS: “It is our goal to connect with new audiences and increase the favorability of hydropower to 
ensure a positive outcome when the public comment period opens. In February of 2020, the EIS 
will be released and the public comment period will begin. This is a crucial time for Northwest 
RiverPartners to have public opinion in our favor and be able to encourage them to participate in 
public comment.”  

63 of 73

https://www.wreca.coop/
https://www.seattletimes.com/seattle-news/environment/irrigators-ask-trump-for-god-squad-as-snake-river-dam-breaching-floated/
https://www.seattletimes.com/seattle-news/environment/irrigators-ask-trump-for-god-squad-as-snake-river-dam-breaching-floated/


3 
 

In addition to a new website, logo, social media campaign, consistent press releases and lobbying 
in DC, planned themes to be used in the NWRP campaign include:   

o Repeating hydro’s role in combating climate change (but obviously excluding any mention 
of other renewables that can also combat climate change without harming fish) 

o Showcasing the efforts and large dollars spent on protecting salmon (no mention of the 
overall demise of wild stocks due to the dams) 

o This exact quote: “Shifting the conversation away from hydro (relieving negative attention 
towards dams) by discussing what the public can and should be doing to help salmon” 

o “tie Snake River Dams to the overall hydro system” (i.e. they do NOT want the LSRDs 
examined on their own merits) 

These same campaign tactics are employed in OPALCO’s Resolution 02-2019 as well as the 13-

page LSRD Overview provided to us on December 9th. (Note: It does not escape our attention that 

though OPALCO staff compiled the LSRD Overview in December in response to a November 20th 

letter by the Orcas Women’s Coalition’s Environmental Action Team, in December Foster Hildreth 

describes the Overview in a memo to the Board as a “study [that] was the basis for the Board’s 

resolution on the Lower Snake River Dams in September 2019”.)  

The June 2019 NWRP presentation took place after the Clean Energy Transportation Act (CETA) 

was passed. Nowhere in the NWRP presentation materials to their members do they mention a 

projected shortfall of energy supply and/or that the LSRDs are crucial components to the 

Columbia River Power System. That’s because NW River Partners represents large corporate 

farms, ports, barging companies, businesses, and utilities w/transportation-dependent customers 

who want to keep the status quo LSRDs in place for economic/transportation reasons. This is not 

surprising because the creation of navigable waterways was actually the primary reason the dams 

were constructed in the first place – not for hydropower, and prior to their construction it was 

predicted that the dams would destroy native salmon stocks: 

State of Washington Dept. of Fisheries 

Annual Report for 1949 

Arthur B. Langlie, Governor 

Alvin Anderson, Director of Fisheries 

Lower Snake River Dams 

Another serious threat to the Columbia river fishery is the proposed  

construction by the US Army Corps of Engineers of Ice Harbor and three  

other dams on the lower Snake river between Pasco Wash, and Lewiston,  

Idaho, to provide slackwater navigation and a relatively minor block of  

power. The development would remove part of the cost of waterborne  

shipping from the shipper and place it on the taxpayer, jeopardizing  

more than one-half of the Columbia river salmon production in exchange  

for 148 miles of subsidized barge route. The transportation "saving" to  

the shipper would amount to $2,000,000 annually, while salmon runs  

having a wholesale value of about $9,000,000 would be threatened with  

destruction. 

This policy of water development, the department maintains, is not in  

the best interest of the over-all economy of the state. Salmon must be  

protected from the type of unilateral thinking that would harm one major  

industry to benefit another. 

• December 6th 2019 – An energy industry publication “Clearing Up” publishes the article 27 Public 

Utilities Adopt Resolutions Supporting Snake River Dams  – excerpted here: 

64 of 73

https://www.newsdata.com/clearing_up/environment/public-utilities-adopt-resolutions-supporting-snake-river-dams/article_662c45ec-186e-11ea-9f5c-8fb9dc7d0c80.html
https://www.newsdata.com/clearing_up/environment/public-utilities-adopt-resolutions-supporting-snake-river-dams/article_662c45ec-186e-11ea-9f5c-8fb9dc7d0c80.html


4 
 

Just before retiring in November, Debbie Bone-Harris, senior public affairs manager for 

Franklin County PUD, told Clearing Up about a growing concern by public-power utilities 

across Washington over the prospect of removing four lower Snake River dams. She provided 

resolutions adopted by boards and commissions of 27 electric cooperatives and PUDs that 

support those dams, and oppose removing or breaching them… The resolutions are part of a 

public-information effort about the importance of the dams, and to voice concerns to public 

officials about new calls for breaching them, she said.  

The member-owner protest at OPALCO’s December 19th meeting has already (on Jan. 6, 2020) been picked 

up by the press: Washington Co-op to Revisit Lower Snake River Dam Support Following Outcry. 

Predictably, this industry-sponsored publication gives almost ALL of the coverage to the actual wording of 

the WRECA-sponsored resolution, its (questionable) claims, and presents support for maintaining the 

status quo on the LSRDs by other power companies (in locations with very different 

concerns/agendas/politics from OPALCO) as if it were almost unanimous. There is no presentation of the 

reasons OPALCO members oppose the Board’s action, and in fact the article amplifies everything we stood 

up against. Of course we expected this kind of press and it’s EXACTLY why we asked that you rescind this 

resolution in December.  

Let’s be clear about the politics at play here, and the stance of the lobbying organizations OPALCO has 

aligned itself with. We understand that some OPALCO directors are certified by National Rural Electric 

Cooperative Association (NRECA - WRECA’s umbrella organization). NRECA was 2011’s biggest contributor 

of Dirty Energy Money to politicians, outspending Koch Brothers by double: 

http://priceofoil.org/2011/04/12/the-new-dirty-energy-money-champions/. For NRECA’s 10-year 

lobbying track record, please see Enclosure #3 in the attachments to this letter. While almost all of these 

lobbying efforts are antithetical to the values of OPALCO member-owners (and to OPALCO’s general 

rhetoric), numbers 29, 35, 37, 38, 43, and 44 on this list are relatively recent actions and particularly 

egregious. From this list, we absolutely KNOW that NRECA is not interested in clean energy and 

renewables, much less the survival of salmon runs, the orcas or health of the ecosystem, which OPALCO 

members value highly.  

As mentioned earlier in this letter, HR 3144 was sponsored by Rep Kathy McMorris, one of the most ardent 

opposers of LSRD breaching who called the court decisions “a veiled attempt to force their [LSRDs] 

removal … all in the name of endangered salmon and orcas”. OPALCO’s May 2018 board materials 

included a letter to the Board from Foster Hildreth indicating staff’s support for HR 3144, and the 

subsequent meeting minutes show that the Board supported HR 3144 by consensus. It’s difficult to square 

all this with the values that OPALCO espouses in its communication with membership, which includes the 

stated support for the whales and salmon.  

It’s deeply disturbing to learn that this is the ethical stance of the organizations currently using OPALCO's 

resolution (and its member-owner dollars) to lobby against action on the LSRDs and for the status quo. 

Anytime NRECA/WRECA, PNGC or NW RiverPartners asks OPALCO to take a position on something, it must 

be highly scrutinized by the Board as well as the co-op’s member-owners. 

To repeat the message we’ve been sending OPALCO since November: we understand clearly that the 

ultimate political purpose of Resolution 2-2019 is to be used by the lobbying groups for the February 2020 

EIS release related to the LSRDs, and we do not approve or authorize our member-owner voices to be 

used in this way. At the December meeting, we did not hear acknowledgement from the Board of the 

65 of 73

http://grok.newsdata.com/fishletter/401/5story.html
http://priceofoil.org/2011/04/12/the-new-dirty-energy-money-champions/


5 
 

political influences at work, or acknowledgement that the co-op’s democratic principles have been 

violated.  

To this date there has been no explanation from the Board as to why OPALCO quickly signed on to 

WRECA’s resolution on the LSRDs--a resolution explicitly intended to preserve the status quo and 

influence lawmakers not to take any action on the LSRDs, at the continued peril of wild Chinook salmon 

that our endangered Southern Resident Killer Whales rely on. What would OPALCO have gained or lost by 

remaining (at the very least) silent on an issue that transcends all political considerations, and strikes so 

close to home? At the December 19th meeting, the Board vaguely cited general concern about future 

power supply as a reason, however, the draft Integrated Resource Plan (IRP) that OPALCO released in 

August presents OPALCO as well-positioned to implement a positive strategy to cut reliance on mainland 

power by 50% over the next 20 years. In addition, the vast majority of utilities reliant on the Federal 

Columbia River Power System (FCRPS) – including those with presumably no plan or at least less robust 

plans to wean off of hydropower – have not adopted a resolution opposing the removal of the LSRDs. 

Despite palliative language in OPALCO’s December press release, as long as Resolution 02-2019 stands, 

“the brakes” are not on. To recap, the unacceptable playbook so far is this: At the request of a lobbying 

organization, OPALCO quickly signed onto a politically-motivated resolution without member-owner 

knowledge or assent (and with no debate, deliberation, or expert consultation). The resolution has, and 

will be, used against us (in that it aligns us with organizations and agendas antithetical to our values and 

steals our political ‘voice’); it will be used against the salmon, against the orcas. WRECA will continue to 

use the resolution as a lobbying tool, now and during public commentary on the EIS. In sum, WRECA called 

the shots, OPALCO did the damage control, and the status quo prevails. We object in no uncertain terms 

to this as the final outcome.  

Respectfully and with all due force, we urge you make good on the promise of your December 23rd press 

release and truly apply “the brakes” to Resolution 02-2019. This means rescind it. Take it off the table. 

Remove your endorsement. We ask you to 1) make a motion at the January board meeting to rescind the 

resolution, 2) to make an on-the-record commitment that says explicitly you will not allow the current 

resolution to be entered into the public commentary on the EIS, and 3) to follow through with this 

commitment by notifying WRECA to this effect prior to February.  

Please be aware that we’ve been respectfully holding back the tides when it comes to petitions, media 

campaigns, etc. because we want to give the Board another chance to reconsider and act on our request. 

No action by the Board on this issue at the January board meeting can only be understood as a decision 

on OPALCO’s part to let the resolution stand for the EIS public commentary period. Since that outcome is 

unacceptable to us, if the Board does not rescind 2-2019 on January 23rd, we will have no choice but to 

fully exercise our democratic member control and pursue other actions. 

Sincerely, 

Norris Carlson and Sandi Friel  

Enclosures:   

1. Guidance Notes to the Co-Operative Principles by the International Cooperative Alliance (ICA) 

2. Resolution 2-2019 with yellow highlights indicating WRECA-provided language copied from sample resolutions 

3. EPA Rules on which NRECA has commented 2007-2017 

66 of 73



67 of 73



Dear Kelly, 

 

I'm joining the Orcas Women's Coalition's Environmental Action Team in urging the 

OPALCO Board to rescind its resolution re "Support of the Federal Columbia River Power 

System and the Four Lower Snake River Dams." 

 

I have been actively involved for the last couple of years with many others on Orcas and 

throughout our region in pushing for the breaching of those dams. I have witnessed very 

compelling presentations by Jim Waddell, who spoke at the Salmon Homecoming event on 

Orcas in 2018. (He has thorough presentations online as well.) In his years working with the 

Army Corps of Engineers, Jim worked on those very dams. What he has to say about the 

economics of the Lower Snake River dams and the very damaging impacts they have had on 

the Chinook salmon population, despite a huge amount of money spent to alleviate that 

problem, must be heard by the OPALCO Board. 

 

I do not believe it's possible to support both the Southern Resident Orcas and the four 

Lower Snake River dams. 

 

I was at the governor's Southern Resident Killer Whale Task Force meeting in Anacortes with 

several others from Orcas and and San Juan Island. We did the best we could to give our 

testimonies, though the public comment period was short and several of us didn't get to 

speak despite having signed up. I think one of the most important comments that day was 

from Jim Youngren, who drove home the point that the hatcheries alone won't produce the 

salmon that the Southern Resident Orcas need to survive, and that the four Lower Snake 

River dams must be breached (not "removed," which is a much longer, more costly process) 

in order to help restore the Chinook salmon population for the Southern Resident Orcas 

that for eons have travelled up to our area from California. 

 

The Southern Resident Orcas are not only essential to the economy of San Juan County, but 

they are a valuable part of who we are as a community, what we love, and what we are 

charged with protecting. 

 

I believe that we must become energy independent in San Juan County, and that we can do 

that with energy efficiency and sustainable renewable energy. The dams may be renewable 

(maybe not, depending on temperatures and snowpack), but they are not sustainable. 

 

So please pass along my message to the OPALCO Board to rescind its resolution in 

opposition to removing (or more accurately, breaching) the four Lower Snake River dams. 

 

Thank you. 

 

Sincerely, 

68 of 73



 

Sharon Abreu 

18-year resident of Orcas Island 

Environmental and Climate Change Educator 

 

 

-- 

Sharon Abreu 
Executive & Artistic Director 
Irthlingz Arts-Based Environmental Education 501(c)(3) 
POB 969, Eastsound, WA 98245 
(360) 376-5773 
(917) 626-5781 (cell) 
www.irthlingz.org 
www.ClimateMonologues.com 
www.MelteseDodo.com 
 

å 

69 of 73

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=http%3a%2f%2fwww.irthlingz.org&c=E,1,Cpqj4e-cMXRrTHnunVDFyvC5j7HmjQXjS2D0InSalsU3xY8BpX_Osors7s5B1IxUPBc7hK-a5PjcTYMghQGGBDqFESaqmZ4kXlLiLIHKX4Lq1icrMyY,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=http%3a%2f%2fwww.ClimateMonologues.com&c=E,1,_SUayOI_2SJBoJ_lNu8JbSWHaP0eL8DRImcW-6AWIvApDr472Jg1ME5YX4c-9vlXp3x5J0zIV6fdnRNISxED9F8SZYzT7KCw983y0hzEp-3XXCat&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=http%3a%2f%2fwww.MelteseDodo.com&c=E,1,_lNIqzO2k2g9YJ2Ycut-RRa7D-YA9Zi9_hm8EHS_cSiCQSpCQsHlZjZhjyRtYal7kXMj2675lMa6FtNV7gLYCG0zp-aNaK6TF-LZB83WbaqMAAqc&typo=1


70 of 73



71 of 73



72 of 73



1/17/2020 Mail - Krista Bouchey - Outlook

https://outlook.office.com/mail/inbox/id/AAQkAGZhMDJlZDZiLTI1ODYtNDc5Yy1hMTlhLWU1M2RiYzYyYTc1OAAQAIZBoxI7X1NNv3VXDWPr%2Br8%3D 1/1

Deb & Don Olliff
OPALCO members
Deer Harbor, WA 98243

73 of 73


	00-Cover 
	01-Agenda
	02-Consent Agenda memo
	03-Board Minutes December 19, 2019
	Consent Agenda
	OPALCO 2020 TARIFFS
	ADJOURNMENT

	04-219's November 2019
	05-GM Review memo
	06-Memo Rez 2-2019 v4
	07-Resolution 2-2019
	08-Year in review memo
	09-OPALCO Rock Island Year in Review 2019
	10-Assistance Program Memo_SLO
	11-GENERAL MANAGER _SLO (002)
	12-RIC Snapshot Jan 2020
	13-Member Correspondance memo
	14-Dam Letters No Attachments
	Ande Finley
	Anne Hall
	Ashwini Bartolucci
	Brian Rick
	Cass Clark
	chom greacan
	Chuck Schietinger
	Ellen Winter
	Irene Skyriver
	Janet Alderton
	Jennifer DeGroot
	Jerry Leone
	Kai Sanburn
	Karin Roemers-Kleven
	Keara reply about board meetings
	Ken Balcomb
	Kirman Taylor
	Liz Scranton
	Lorna Reese
	Mary Groop
	Norris Carlson and Sandi Friel
	Pam Weeks
	Sharon Abreu
	Sue Bauer
	Summer Scriver
	Todd Spalti




